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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE "STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful

consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is
given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Wuxi Life International Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of The Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and beliet: (1) the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive; (2) there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been
arrived at after due and careful consideration and are found on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERERA KD

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue
For the year ended 31 December, 2023 (the

recorded a total revenue of approximately HK$24,493,000, representing

“Year”), the Group

an increase of approximately HK$3,057,000 or 14.3% as compared
with that of approximately HK$21,436,000 in 2022. The revenue of the
Group was derived from continuing operations, being the developing
and marketing of the patented server-based technology and the
provision of communications software platform, software related
services and the custom-made software development services (the
“Software Platform Business”) and the game publishing, development
of mobile game and related intellectual property and platform, mobile
application and data solutions and provision of IT related solutions (the
“Mobile Games and Applications Business”). The digital marketing and
software development businesses in the People’s Republic of China was
still at the initial stage and did not contribute any revenue to the Group
during the Year.

The increment in the Group's revenue was attributed by the increase in
segment revenue from the Software Platform Business by approximately
HK$3,057,000, which recorded a segment revenue of approximately
HK$24,493,000 for the Year as compared with that of approximately
HK$21,436,000 in 2022. The increase in the segment revenue from the
Software Platform Business was mainly due to more sales orders from
existing and new customers.

The obsolescence of the current mobile games and the postponement
of its mobile game development plan as a result of the reassessment
of the Group's strategy led to the segment revenue from the Mobile
Games and Applications Business to be nil for the Year (2022: nil).

Cost of Sales

For the Year, the cost of sales of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$8,851,000 (2022: approximately HK$8,736,000), which represented
an increase of approximately HK$115,000 or 1.3%, mainly due to the
increase in subcontracting costs.

Gross Profit

As a result of the aforementioned increase in the total revenue
and cost of sales, gross profit of the Group for the Year increased
by approximately HK$2,942,000 or 23.2% to approximately
HK$15,642,000 (2022: approximately HK$12,700,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERERA KD

Administrative and other operating expenses

The administrative and other operating expenses of the Group for the
Year increased by approximately HK$6,640,000 or 38.3% amounted to
approximately HK$23,998,000 (2022: approximately HK$17,358,000),
which comprised of administrative expenses, research and development
expenses and selling and distribution expenses. The increase in overall
expenses was mainly due to the increase in staff costs and professional
fees, and write-off of deposits and other receivables of approximately
HK$2 million for the Year.

Finance Costs

Finance costs was approximately HK$890,000 for the Year (2022:
approximately HK$274,000), which mainly comprised of interest on
borrowing from a third party and interest on lease liabilities. The
increase in finance cost was mainly due to the increase in interest on
borrowing.

Discontinued operation

Money lending business was discontinued during the year ended 31
December, 2021 and was disposed of to an independent third party on
14 December, 2023 in order to generate cash flows for the expansion
of the Group’s other businesses. Profit for the Year from discontinued
operation was approximately HK$3,049,000 compared with profit of
approximately HK$76,000 in 2022, mainly due to the gain on disposal
of subsidiaries in the Year.

Loss for the Year

The consolidated net loss attributable to owners of the Company
for the Year from continuing operations amounted to approximately
HK$11,591,000, compared with approximately HK$21,945,000 in 2022.
The change in results was mainly due to (i) the increase in gross profit
as a result of the increase in revenue of the Software Platform Business;
(ii) the significant decrease in the impairment loss on goodwill; and
(iii) partly set off by the increase in administrative and other operating
expenses, and finance cost, and impairment loss on right-of-use assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERERA KD

DIVIDEND

The board of Directors (the “Board”) does not recommend the payment
of any final dividend for the year ended 31 December, 2023 (2022: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT
For the Year, the Group continued to focus on two principal businesses,
they are (i) Software Platform Business and (ii) Mobile Games and

Applications Business.

Software Platform Business

During the Year, with the lifting of COVID-19 related quarantine
measures, life gradually returned to normal, and our project progress
gradually returned to normal. In addition, the Hong Kong Government
promulgated the Hong Kong Innovation and Technology Development
Blueprint at the end of 2022 and is determined to allocate resources for
developing Hong Kong into an international information and technology
centre, which are reflected in both the Chief Executive 2023 Policy
Address and the 2023-24 Budget. As a result, the Group’s business has
been positively impacted by the gradual recovery of the economy and
the increased investment in technology by the Hong Kong government,
which is considered as the major customer of the Company.

The Software Platform Business performed satisfactorily and achieved
the increase of the segment revenue by approximately 14.3% (2022:
100%) of the
Group's total revenue for the Year. Facing the conditions in the fiercely

approximately 6.1%), and accounted for 100% (2022:

competitive and ever-changing market, the Group will continue to put in
enough resources to meet the increasingly innovative industry standards

for customer’s demand.

Mobile Games and Applications Business

The Group has never planned to cease to develop and publish its
own mobile game. The postponement of its previous mobile game
development plan is only the result of the reassessment of the Group's
strategy.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERERA KD

Discontinued Operation

The Directors, upon their appointment, had reviewed the operation
of the Money Lending Business and obtained relevant documents to
assess its performance. The Directors had performed all necessary
measures to recover the outstanding loans including but not limited to
(i) concluding settlement plans with debtors; (ii) issuing demand letters;
(iii) engaging external debt collector; and (iv) taking legal proceedings.
On 14 December, 2023, the Money Lending Business was disposed of
to an independent thirty party in order to generate cash flows for the
expansion of the Group’s other businesses. The Board shall take all
necessary measures to protect the interest of the Company and the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

OUTLOOK

The information technology (“IT”) market in Hong Kong has been
experiencing robust growth. Despite the Hong Kong economy fluctuates
in the past decade, according to Census and Statistics Department, the
real gross domestic product of information and communications sector,
as adjusted for inflation, has been experiencing year-on-year growth for
15 consecutive years, increasing from approximately HK$66.2 million in
2008 to approximately HK$101.0 million in 2023. Fueled by small and
medium enterprises (“SMEs”) rapidly adopting advanced IT solutions,
it enhances operational efficiency and spurs growth through resources
management software that strengthens customer engagement and
loyalty. SMEs leverage IT services to streamline operations, driving
increased IT investments.

However, facing the conditions in the fiercely competitive and ever-
changing market, the Group will continue to put in enough resources
to meet the increasingly innovative industry standards for customer’s
demand. In navigating the post-pandemic landscape, the Company's
strategy concentrates on expanding in high-growth sectors while

maintaining presence in slowergrowth areas.

Further, the surge in Big Data adoption is a pivotal trend in Hong Kong's
IT landscape. Enterprises utilize Big Data analytics to refine production
and sales strategies, aiding expansion into global markets. Startups
also harness analytics to help established companies with datadriven
decision-making, optimizing efficiency and enhancing consumer
experiences. This growing Big Data reliance underpins the market's
expansion.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERERA KD

The newly launched advertising e-commerce platform is well-positioned
to benefit from these IT market dynamics in Hong Kong. It strategically
enables SMEs to expand their reach and efficiency in advertising. By
providing a centralized digital marketplace, the platform can potentially
lower marketing costs and increase rate of return for SMEs through
targeted advertising and analytics. Aligning with current IT trends, the
platform could also offer innovative data-driven advertising solutions,
tapping into the widespread use of data analytics and Al to enhance
ad relevance and engagement. This aligns with digital transformation,
giving SMEs a resilient and forward-thinking advertising channel amid

the evolving economic climate.

Financial Resource and Liquidity

The Group’s main business operations and investments are in Hong
Kong. At 31 December, 2023, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$3,198,000 (2022: approximately HK$4,445,000).
Most of the cash and cash equivalents are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. The Group will closely monitor exchange rate movement and
will take appropriate activities to reduce the exchange risk.

Gearing Ratio

At 31 December, 2023, total assets of the Group were approximately
HK$8,703,000 (2022: approximately HK$19,570,000) whereas total
liabilities were approximately HK$13,264,000 (2022: approximately
HK$14,796,000).
total liabilities over total assets, was approximately 152.4% (2022:

The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as

approximately 75.6%) and the current ratio, calculated as current assets
over current liabilities, was approximately 0.73 (2022: approximately
0.86). The Directors will continue to take measures to further improve
the liquidity and gearing position of the Group.

Material Acquisition, Disposal and Significant
Investment

During the year ended 31 December, 2023, the Group disposed of
100% of a wholly-owned subsidiary, Major Worldwide Holdings Limited,
at the consideration of HK$6 million, to an independent third party,
resulting in a gain of approximately HK$3.8 million.

EHMEHNESEEHTEEER/LE > IBE
EREARKT S ERIR LN P ES
FaBBEMB NP NEEAESEER
ReESMEX ZTEaRERE—EEPXUF
Fa > JREEHERE  BREBEERSKN
ERoth Ref/hERRE - 2 FTaREE
SEARKEBE > THREFHIERD
BERRBZ  MBEEIFTRALEERN
EZER EeESHEEKRZREE - 1L
BHRFLEE ErHSENEERERS
PNERET-ERAMERAEENES
RiE -

BHEERRTBHEZ

AEBRBZFEXBREREENRETBET °
RZE2EZ=F+ZHA=+—H ' &x&&EZ
RHERREESEEYHN 53,198,000 T (ZF
T T4 1 #94,445,0008 78) c KEE DB K
REEEWIHURTHE AEEARFEYE
EEXEH L ENESEGREINERR o

BELF

RZE_=ZfF+_A=+—H' x&EH
%ﬁ%ﬁ%wwmm%ﬁcﬁi:ﬁt
#919,570,00078 JT) ° wmeEAAas

13,264, ooo%m(_E: — £ 1 #914,796,000
B e AEEZEABLEEXRAE BRI
BEESTHE)NAI24% (CEZ —F:. 4
75.6%) RALELEFEAGEERLLUREE
BT H) N A073 (22T 224 :45086) c &=
EREERNZEERENE—PTHRSEAE
BrrBETREERRT

BEAUBEFEER LHEFEREARE

HE_Z-_=—F+ZB=1t—HILEE">
REEHE2EWE 2B Major Worldwide
Holdings Limited 100% FIRREF — BB ILF
=h RERBEBEBT EEREN38E
BAT o

BELABERZERERERAA 9
F #2023



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERERA KD

Other than the above-mentioned disposal, the Group did not have any
other material acquisition, disposal and significant investment during the
year ended 31 December, 2023.

Capital Structure

As at 31 December, 2023, the authorised share capital of the Company
was HK$120,000,000 divided into 3,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.04
each, of which 1,272,640,000 ordinary shares were in issue and fully
paid.

Funding and Treasury Policies

The Group consistently adopts a conservative treasury policy during
its development and generally finances its operations and business
development with internally generated resources and equity and/or debt
financing activities in order to maintain a healthy liquidity position. To
manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the financial position
of the Group to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets,
liabilities and commitments can meet its funding requirements from
time to time.

Foreign Exchange Exposure
The Directors consider that the Group had no material foreign exchange

exposure.

Material Risk Factors
Details of the Group's financial risk and analysis are set out in note 27
to the consolidated financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December, 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERERA KD

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December, 2023, the Group had 55 employees (2022: 52
employees) in Hong Kong and the PRC. The staff costs (including
directors’ remuneration) were approximately HK$18,074,000 for the
year ended 31 December, 2023 (2022: approximately HK$17,438,000).

The Group’s remuneration policy is revised periodically and determined
by reference to market terms, company performance, individual
qualifications and performance, and in accordance with the statutory
requirements of the respective jurisdiction where the employees are
employed.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining and promoting stringent
corporate governance. The principle of the Company’s corporate
governance is to promote effective internal control measures, uphold
a high standard of ethics, transparency, responsibility and integrity
in all aspects of business, to ensure that its affairs are conducted in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations and to enhance the
transparency and accountability of the Board to shareholders.

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the
interests of shareholders, enhance corporate value and formulate its
business strategies and policies.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December, 2023, the Company had adopted
a code of conduct regarding securities transactions (the “Securities
Dealing Code") by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Company had also made specific enquiry of all Directors and
the Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the required

standard of dealings and its Securities Dealing Code.

The Securities Dealing Code also applies to all relevant employees of the
Company who are likely to be in possession of inside information of the
Company. No incident of non-compliance of the Securities Dealing Code
by the relevant employees was noted by the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code") as contained in Appendix
15 of the GEM Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange throughout the year
ended 31 December, 2023 (the “Reporting Period”) except the CG Code
provisions A.2.1.
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The chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board, ensuring its
effectiveness in all aspects of its role for setting its agenda and taking
into account any matters proposed by other directors for inclusion in the
agenda while the chief executive officer (the "CEQ") is responsible for
the day-to-day management of the Group’s business.

Under the Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and CEO should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual.

The Company does not have a CEO. The role of CEO is currently
shared by the executive directors, who are collectively responsible
for management of the business operations of the Group. The Board
is of the view that the balance of power and authority is ensured by
the operation of the Board, which comprises experienced individuals
who will from time to time discuss issues affecting operations of
the Company and the Group. This arrangement can still enable the
Company to make and implement decisions promptly, and thus achieve
the Company’s objectives efficiently and effectively. The Company will,
at the time when it thinks fit, arrange for new appointment of the CEO.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and
performance and should take decisions objectively in the best interests
of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from
a Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company, and
whether the Director is spending sufficient time performing them. The
Board recognizes the importance and benefits of conducting regular
evaluation of its performance.

The members of the Board broadly agreed that the Board had operated
satisfactorily. They were also satisfied, in general, with the composition
and effectiveness of the Board.
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The Board has established the Group's purpose, values and strategy,
and has satisfied itself that the Group’s culture is aligned. Acting with
integrity and leading by example, the Directors promote the desired
culture to instill and continually reinforce across the Group the values of
acting lawfully, ethically and responsibly. The Group has adopted anti-
corruption and whistleblowing policy to provide forums for reporting
issues and concerns on any misconduct, and to uphold business integrity
in its operations.

The Group is committed to seeking progress while maintaining stability
and strives to improve operational efficiency and strengthen the
risk control measures. Effective risk control will remain as the core
competitiveness and investment highlight of the Group, while the Group
will strive to extend its business to explore business opportunities. A
healthy corporate culture is important to good corporate governance,
which is crucial for achieving sustainable long-term success of the
Group.

COMPOSITION

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven Directors,
of which three are executive Directors (the “ED"”), namely Mr. Liu
Guanzhou (Chairman), Ms. Liu Xingmei and Mr. Choi Pun Lap, one is
non-executive Director (the “NED"”), namely Ms. Li Hui Ling and three
are independent non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”), namely Ms.
Lam Yuen Man Maria, Mr. Fu Yan Ming and Mr. Tai Chin Ho. There
is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship
amongst the Directors. The Directors’ biographical information is set out
in pages 33 to 37 under the section headed "Biographies of Directors”.

The Board includes a balanced composition of ED and INEDs so that
there is a strong independent element on the Board, which can
effectively exercise independent judgement.

The Board has the necessary skills and experience appropriate for
discharging their duties as Directors in the best interests of the Company
and that the current board size is adequate for its present operations.
Each Director keeps abreast of his responsibility as the Director and of
the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board, ensuring its
effectiveness in all aspects of its role for setting its agenda and taking
into account any matters proposed by other directors for inclusion in the
agenda while the CEO is responsible for the day-to-day management of
the Group's business.

Under the CG Code provision C.2.1, the roles of chairman and CEO
should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.

The Company does not have a CEO. The role of CEO is currently
shared by the executive directors, who are collectively responsible
for management of the business operations of the Group. The Board
is of the view that the balance of power and authority is ensured by
the operation of the Board, which comprises experienced individuals
who will from time to time discuss issues affecting operations of
the Company and the Group. This arrangement can still enable the
Company to make and implement decisions promptly, and thus achieve
the Company’s objectives efficiently and effectively. The Company will,
at the time when it thinks fit, arrange for new appointment of the CEO.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The CG Code provision C.1.6 requires that independent non-executive
directors should, among others, attend general meetings and develop
a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. There is
satisfactory attendance at Board meetings, Board Committee meetings

and the general meeting during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Company had three INEDs in which
at least one of them has appropriate professional accounting or related
financial management expertise in compliance with rules 5.05(1) and
5.05(2) of the GEM Listing Rules.

EFRRITHAS

IFABRESETY  URRES SN
BRNAGZAEPAANE  BEEME
fin 6 F 12 UM A S

FEIEZEMRMFE M7
BRREEFAEEXHB AEEE -

REFEEEBTRIHEXC21 TFEETK
BEZzABEBERR > LTEH—ABRER
fo

FABIWRBEITHAE - THEHNAES
FEHATESFHARET REHAFEELE
EEHFLEZEE EFTRARIREE
FZEBEFENEFRETE MEFSH
E?%%E’J)\Eﬁﬁﬁ% BEREETHAREE

RARFEREFAZENZE - ZLHD
FIERANTRERERFHRETRER  #M

AMERBHMENELRTNER - XRF
RRERSEERZHEEMITHRAS -

BIEMITES
TEEARTANKRXCIREBIIFENTE
EEREFELEERRATRERRNE
REZEM TR HREEHRN > E=28 =
EESLEEREARRBATHHEERSS
ANRE °

isig

REHR > A2 TE BEIUERNTES
HpZE D - EBECBE XSt EMMH
BIRERTESGEM Em AR AI555.05(1) % 5.05(2)
RFRE ©

}

BELABERZERERERAA 15
F #2023



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRS

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual
confirmation of their independence pursuant to rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all the INEDs are
independent in accordance with rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company has put in place mechanism to ensure independent views
and input are available to the Board. This is achieved by giving directors
access to external independent professional advice from legal advisers
and auditor, as well as the full attendance of all INED at all the meetings
of the Board and its relevant committees held during the Reporting
Period.

The Board reviews the implementation and effectiveness of the
aforementioned mechanisms on an annual basis.

Terms of Directors and Re-election of Directors

Code provision B.2.2 of the CG Code states that all directors appointed
to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders
at the first general meeting after appointment and that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Each of the ED has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for a term of three years, subject to renewal after the expiry of the
then current term. Each of the NED and INED has entered into an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years, subject
to renewal after the expiry of the then current term.

Under the Company's Articles of Association, at every annual general
meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to, but not less than, one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director (including those appointed for a
specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. Any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board shall not be taken into account in determining
which Directors are to retire by rotation. The retiring Directors shall be
eligible for re-election thereat.
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The Company's Articles of Association also provides that all Directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board
shall hold office only until the next following general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

Responsibilities and Accountabilities of the Directors

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company, and
is collectively responsible for directing and supervising the Company’s
affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational and
financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control and risk

management systems are in place.

All Directors, including NED and INED, have brought a wide spectrum
of valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the
Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

The INED are responsible for ensuring a high standard of regulatory
reporting of the Company and providing a balance in the Board for
bringing effective independent judgment on corporate actions and
operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company's expenses for discharging
their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held
by them.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating
to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to the

management.
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The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken against
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities. The

insurance coverage would be reviewed on an annual basis.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors
Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in
order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

All Directors have been updated on the latest developments regarding
the statutory and regulatory requirements and also the business and
market changes to facilitate the performance of their responsibilities
and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements, and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.

All Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
Internally-facilitated briefings for the Directors would be arranged and
reading materials on changes and developments to the Group's business
and to the legislative and regulatory environments relating to the market
and the operations of the Group would be provided to the Directors
where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expenses. All the Directors named in
the section headed “Composition” in this Corporate Governance Report
confirmed that they have complied with the code provision C.1.4 of the
CG Code on Directors’ continuous professional development during the
Reporting Period by participating in appropriate continuous professional
development activities, and reading materials relating to regulatory
updates and handouts or reviewing the papers and circulars sent by the
Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is entrusted with the duty to put in place a proper corporate
governance structure of the Company. It is primarily responsible for
setting directions, formulating strategies, monitoring performance and
managing the risks of the Group. Under the Board, there are currently
three committees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee perform their distinct roles in accordance with their
respective terms of reference and assist the Board in supervising certain
functions of the management. Each of the Committees is established
with defined written terms of reference which are available on the
Company's website and GEM website.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is responsible for making recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external
auditor, evaluating the overall effectiveness of the internal control
and risk management systems, reviewing the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and other financial reporting
matters and ensuring the completeness, accuracy and fairness of the
financial statements, monitoring compliance with statutory and listing

requirements and overseeing the relationship with the external auditors.

The Audit Committee reviews the quarterly, interim and annual
reports before submission to the Board. At least one member has an
appropriate professional qualification or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Audit Committee focuses not only on the
impact of the changes in accounting policies and practices but also on
the compliance with accounting standards, the GEM Listing Rules and
the legal requirements during the review of the Company’s quarterly,

interim and annual reports.

Senior representatives of the external auditor, executive Directors and
senior executives are invited to attend the meetings, if required. Each of
the Audit Committee members has unrestricted access to the Group's
external auditor and the management.
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The Audit Committee supervises internal investigation and reviewing
the anti-corruption policy and system and the whistleblowing policy
and systems and other arrangements for employees of the Company to
raise concerns about possible improprieties in any matters related to the
Company.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises three
INEDs, namely Mr. Tai Chin Ho, Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria and Mr. Fu
Yan Ming. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Tai Chin Ho.
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The Audit Committee is scheduled to meet at least four times a year, BEZZESHASERE VBT REE o
Four meetings were held during the Reporting Period. The attendance HREHRNEBERTHORTE  SHEZHES
of each member is set out as follows: MEFNWMT
Attendance/
eligible to attend
HERY SEREERHY
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BIUERITES
Mr. Tai Chin Ho (Chairman) 4/4
BT E(ER)
Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria 4/4
i E 2+
Mr. Fu Yan Ming 4/4
RFRBE L&
Summary of works T1E#FR
During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee reviewed the financial BREHN > EXEZECERBEEZREZESZ

reporting matters including the quarterly, interim and annual results,
made recommendations to the Board on the terms of engagement and
re-appointment of the external auditor, and reviewed the adequacy and
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems, and its
other duties in accordance with the Audit Committee’s written terms of

reference.
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The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in line with the CG
Code and are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. The Audit Committee is required, amongst other things,
to oversee the relationship with the external auditors, to review the
Group's preliminary quarterly results, interim results and annual financial
statements and to monitor the integrity of the financial statements of
the Group, to review the scope, extent and effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems, internal audit matters
and to review the financial and accounting policies adopted by the
Group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board regarding the terms of remuneration
package payable to Directors and senior management and on the
Company's policy and structure for remuneration of all Directors and
senior management.

The model of the Remuneration Committee described in code provision
E.1.2 (c)(ii) of the CG Code has been adopted by the Company.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of Directors is recommended by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the prevailing market conditions, individual
experience, duties and responsibilities.

Directors’ emoluments comprise payments to Directors by the Company
and its subsidiaries in connection with the management of the
Group's affairs. The amounts paid to each Director for the year ended
31 December, 2023 are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises
three INEDs, namely Mr. Tai Chin Ho, Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria and
Mr. Fu Yan Ming. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by an INED,
Mr. Tai Chin Ho.
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The Remuneration Committee is scheduled to meet at least once a year.
One meeting was held during the year ended 31 December, 2023. The
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

FMEEEHIEFERVBT—REF -
BE_Z_-F+_R=+—HLEFEAREE
T—REH - BERUEZHFEBREAIINT:

Attendance/
eligible to attend

HERE SERHEREK

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUFRITES

Mr. Tai Chin Ho (Chairman)
TS EE (EE)

Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria

M E L

Mr. Fu Yan Ming

R E

Summary of works

During the year 2023, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the
remuneration policy of the Group and the remuneration packages of all
the Directors, reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration package of the proposed Directors in accordance with the

Remuneration Committee’s written terms of reference.

No material matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 23 of the
GEM Listing Rules were required to be reviewed or approved by the
Remuneration Committee during the Reporting Period.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is responsible for, among other things,
assisting the Board by developing and formulating relevant procedures
in nominating candidates for directorship, reviewing the structure, size
and composition, and the diversity of the Board at least annually with
due regard to the Board Diversity Policy (as defined below) and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the corporate strategy of the Company; identifying individuals suitably
qualified to become members of the Board having due regard to the
Board Diversity Policy; assessing the independence of INEDs; making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors; as well as to review
the Board Diversity Policy and the Board Nomination Policy (as defined
below), as appropriate.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises two
INEDs and one executive Director, namely Mr. Tai Chin Ho, Ms. Lam
Yuen Man Maria and Mr. Choi Pun Lap. The Nomination Committee is
chaired by an INED, Mr. Tai Chin Ho.

The Nomination Committee is scheduled to meet at least once a year.
In addition, the Nomination Committee also meets as it is required to
consider nomination related matters. One meeting was held during the
year ended 31 December, 2023. The attendance of each member is set

out as follows:
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FEEIRBE REREN > RZTAEKFE
THERREERRARZEXRBMBERE
FEFHNEPRIER KEBEFTS
TERRYEEBESEERZALTHEES
EHE,IRBIFATESFTZEIIE, 5
ZRREHNEZREFREFTEIFEME
FERUES RERBNESFE L TIER
RREFTRIEHR(EERTX)

REREAH  EREZETHMBBILIEA
TEFK—RBATESHEN > REDHAHE
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REZEGHESERVET —REHZ It
Sh REZEETRBERRTESE  UE
BiREHEEE NBEE_Z_=F1+_H
—+—HLEFEEEET—REZ - BEMEZ
HEERHEINWMT:

Attendance/
eligible to attend

HERYE AERHERK

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BWIAFEMITES

Mr. Tai Chin Ho (Chairman)
BFEEE(ERE)

Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria

My = 2+

Executive Directors
WITES

Mr. Choi Pun Lap
BARIUKE

171

171

171
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Summary of works

During the year 2023, the Nomination Committee reviewed the
structure, size and composition of the Board in light of the Board
Diversity Policy, assessed the independence of INEDs, reviewed and
made recommendation to the Board on the proposed re-election of
the retiring Directors, reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and the
Nomination Policy, and reviewed the appointment of the nominated
Directors and made recommendation to the Board for approval
in accordance with the Nomination Committee’s written terms of

reference.

Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a Nomination Policy in February 2019 regarding
the nomination, appointment, re-appointment of Directors and the
nomination procedure of the Company.

The Nomination Committee will select candidate for directorship
based on his/her character, integrity, professorial qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience, independence, diversity of the Board,
willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a Board
member and such other criteria that are appropriate for the business
and corporate strategy of the Company.

For appointment of new Director, the Nomination Committee evaluates
such candidate based on the criteria as set out above to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship. For those qualified
candidates, recommendations are made to the Board. For re-election
of the retiring director, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
review the overall contribution and service to the Company of the
retiring Director and the level of participation and performance on
the Board and determine whether the retiring Director continues to
meet the criteria as set out above. Recommendation are then made to
shareholders in respect of the proposed re-election of Director at the

general meeting.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy regularly
or at any time necessary.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Group adopted a Board Diversity Policy on 1 September, 2013. A
summary of this policy, together with the measurable objectives set
for implementing this policy, and the progress made towards achieving
those objectives are disclosed as below.

The Company recognised and embraced the benefits of having a diverse
Board to the quality of its performance. The Board Diversity Policy aimed
to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. In designing
the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from a
numbers of measurable aspects including but not limited to gender, age,
ethnicity, knowledge and length of services. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered with the
objective criteria, having due regards for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of services. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

Implementation and Monitoring

The Nomination Committee reviewed the Board’s composition under
diversified perspectives, and monitored the implementation of the Board
Diversity Policy annually.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises two
INEDs and one executive Director, and thereby to promote critical review
and control of the management process. The Board is also characterised
by significant diversity, whether considered in terms of age, length of
services, professional background and skills.
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The Nomination Committee has reviewed the Board Diversity Policy to
ensure its effectiveness and considered that the Group achieved the
Board Diversity Policy.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
as set out in the terms of reference equivalent to code provision A.2.1
of the CG Code.

The Board had reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company's policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance
of the Securities Dealing Code, and the Company’s compliance with the
CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD MEETINGS

Code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code states that at least four regular
Board meetings should be held each year at approximately quarterly
intervals with active participation of a majority of Directors, either in
person or through other electronic means of communication.

Members of the Board met on a regular basis and on ad hoc basis
to discuss the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial
performance of the Group. There were 4 Board meetings held during
the Reporting Period.
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Attendance of individual Directors at Board meetings held during the

Reporting Period were set out as follows:

BEHEEHERESHRNEBTZEEFEE
MEIIT

Tft

Attendance/eligible to attend

HEXY SERHERY
Board meeting General meeting
EEgE3 BREXE
Executive Directors
WITES
Mr. Liu Guanzhou' (Chairman) 3/3 2/2
2 INEE (EFE)
Ms. Liu Xingmei? N/AT & 3 N/A & A
2 58 442
Mr. Choi Pun Lap 4/4 2/2
BRI E
Non-Executive Director
ERITES
Ms. Li Hui Ling® 4/4 2/2
RER LT3
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BIEHTES
Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria 4/4 2/2
MBEELZ L
Mr. Fu Yan Ming 4/4 2/2
RS E
Mr. Tai Chin Ho 4/4 2/2
BTk
Notes: g2
1. Mr. Liu Guanzhou has been appointed as an ED effective on 14 April, 2023. 1. BEMNEEEEZERPITES BT _=FN
A+mBEM-
2. Ms. Liu Xingmei has been appointed as an ED effective on 30 November, 2023. 2. AEELLTEREZERBITEST BT _=F
+—A=+H4%®%-

3. Ms. Li Hui Ling has been appointed as a NED effective on 14 February, 2023. 3. RERUITCEZERIENTES BT _=F

ZAtTMHB&ER-
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company pursues a continuity-based dividend policy (“Dividend
Policy”) which aims to allow the shareholders to participate in the
Company's profits and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for
future growth.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount, the Board should take into account, inter alias, the
Company'’s operating results, actual and expected financial performance,
retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
members of the Group, the Group’s debt to equity ratios, liquidity
position, the Group expected working capital requirements and future
expansion plans, any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by the Group's lender, general economic conditions, business
cycle of the Group's business and any other factors that the Board may

deem appropriate and relevant.

The Board will review, modify and/or update the Dividend Policy at any

time as it deems fits and necessary.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY AND
WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group has established (i) policy and measures that promote and
support anti-corruption laws and regulations; and (ii) whistleblowing
policy and measures for employees, suppliers and business partners to
raise concerns, in confidence and anonymity, with the Audit Committee
about possible improprieties in any matter related to the Group. For
further details of the Group’s anti-corruption and whistleblowing
policy and/or measures, please refer to the section headed “Operating
Social and

Practices and Social Investment” of the Environmental,

Governance Report separately published on the Company’s website.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Company establishes and
maintains appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems. Such system is to safeguard of the interest of

shareholders and the Group’s assets.
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The risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. It has been an important duty
of the Board to conduct a review of internal control to ensure the
effectiveness and adequacy of the system of the Group annually or at
any time necessary. The review covers all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions, adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and
training program and budget. The process use to review its effectiveness
includes identification, evaluation, management measures and control

and review.

Internal Control

During the year ended 31 December, 2023, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted an annual review of the overall effectiveness of
the system of internal control of the Group over financial, operational
and compliance issues, risk management process, information systems
security, scope and quality of the management’s monitoring of risks
and the effectiveness of financial reporting and compliance with the
Listing Rules. The Board considered that the resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function, and their training programmes and budget were
adequate. The Board concluded that in general, the Group had set up a
sound control environment and installed necessary control mechanisms
to monitor and correct non-compliance.

Disclosure of Inside Information

The Company has adopted a policy on disclosure of Inside Information
in respect of procedures and internal control for the handling and
dissemination of inside information in a timely manner pursuant to rule
17.10 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Inside Information Provision
under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Related Party Transactions

During the year ended 31 December, 2023, the related party
transactions, if any, are periodically reviewed and approved by the Audit
Committee.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for each financial period to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December, 2023, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgements and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable
and prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statement of the Company is
of this annual

set out in the section “Independent Auditor’s Report”

report.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company reviews the appointment of an external auditor on an
annual basis including a review of the audit scope and approval of
the audit fee. The remuneration in respect of audit service and non-
audit service (including professional advice on taxation) for the year
ended 31 December, 2023 provided by Fan, Chan & Co. Limited was
HK$420,000 and nil respectively.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The selection, appointment and dismissal of the Company Secretary
is subject to approval by the Board in accordance with the Articles of
Association and CG Code. Mr. Hui Hung Kwan (“Mr. Hui”) has been
appointed as the company secretary of the Company with effect from 1
May, 2023.

In accordance with rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, Mr. Hui have
taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the

year under review.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

(i)

Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company (the “Extraordinary
General Meeting”). The Extraordinary General Meeting shall also
be convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one-tenth of the issued share capital of the Company having
the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be
made in writing to the Directors or the secretary for the purpose
of requiring an Extraordinary General Meeting to be called by
the Directors for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days
of such deposit the Directors fail to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Directors shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

(iij) Send Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries of shareholders can be sent to the Company either by
email at inform.8148@gmail.com or by post to the Company’s
Hong Kong head office at Room H, 2/F, Manson Industrial
Building, 8 A Kung Ngam Village Lane, Shaukeiwan, Hong Kong.
Shareholders can also make enquiries with the Board directly at
the general meetings.

(iii) Putting forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to the Articles (as amended from time to time), the
shareholders who wish to move a resolution may by means of
requisition convene an Extraordinary General Meeting according
to the procedures as set out above.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company uses two-way communication channels to account to
shareholders and investors for the performance of the Company. All
the shareholders have received not less than 21 days’ notice of annual
general meeting at which Directors are available to answer questions
on the business. Extensive information about the Group’s activities is
provided in its annual report, interim report and quarterly reports which
are sent to shareholders and investors. The Company’s announcements,
press releases and publications are published and are also available
on the Stock Exchange website and on the Company's website at

www.wuxilife.com.hk.

During the Reporting Period, there was not any change in the
Company’s constitutional documents. A consolidated version of the
Company’s constitutional documents is available on the Company's
website and the Stock Exchange website.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Guanzhou (“Mr. Liu”), aged 42, has been appointed as an
executive Director and chairman of the Board of the Company with
effect from 14 April, 2023. He has over 13 years of experience in
business directory publishing and strategic consultancy, and over 10
years of experience in digital marketing and software business, including
rich sales channels and business network in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC").

Mr. Liu is the shareholder and authorised representative of several
private companies which are engaging in electromechanical equipment,
advertising, investment management and brand operation management.
Mr. Liu has been a publisher and strategic consultant. Mr. Liu is mainly
responsible for the general management and business development in
the Greater China.

Ms. Liu Xingmei (“Ms. Liu”), aged 37, has been appointed as an
executive Director of the Company with effect from 30 November, 2023.
She has over 7 years of experience in internet micro-business brand
management, and over 2 years of experience in advertising e-commerce
operation and management, including rich sales channels and business
network in the PRC. Ms. Liu has won several awards in the e-commerce
industry. Ms. Liu currently leads an e-commerce team of approximately
20,000 people in the advertising e-commerce business.
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Mr. Choi Pun Lap (“Mr. Choi”), aged 46, has been appointed as an
executive Director of the Company since June 2021. He is also a member
of the nomination committee.

Mr. Choi has extensive knowledge in corporate finance transactions in
Hong Kong. He is well experienced for working in mergers & acquisition,
analysing financial and market data, responsible for coordinating and
supporting integration planning for acquisitions, and taking deals
through the full process to successful completion. He is currently an
executive director of Zhejiang United Investment Holdings Group
Limited (stock code: 8366) and Simplicity Holding Limited (stock code:
8367), the shares of both are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange,
an independent non-executive director of Sunway International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 58), the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, and Zhao Xian Business Ecology
International Holdings Limited (formerly known as On Real International
Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8245), the shares of which are listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange. Also, he is a principal of Absolute Value
Business & Asset Valuation Limited which provides services of valuation,
accounting and business solution to different companies in different
industries. In the past, Mr. Choi was a financial controller of a company
which is listed in GEM in 2019 and he was a senior audit manager in
the audit department of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB")
in Hong Kong. He has worked in HLB for more than ten years from
February 2007 to December 2017.

Mr. Choi is a valuation practitioner of International Association of
Certified Valuation Specialists since 2019. He is a member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of Certified
Practising Accountants Australia and a member of Chartered Global
Management Accountant. Mr. Choi graduated from Open University
of Hong Kong with a Master of Law (Chinese Business Law) in Hong
Kong in 2017. He obtained a Bachelor of Business (Accounting) from
Central Queensland University in Australia in 2003 and further studied
Postgraduate Diploma of Accounting in Monash University in Australia
in 2005.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Ms. Li Hui Ling ("Ms. Li”), aged 42, has been appointed as a non-

executive Director of the Company since February 2023.

Ms. Li possesses over 18 years of experience in software and digital
marketing and finance related duties. Ms. Li is the founder of
several private companies which are engaging in software business
development, digital marketing business development and website
business development. In the course of her career, Ms. Li has been the
chief marketing officer, the general manger and the chairman of the
board.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria (“Ms. Lam”), aged 54, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company since
September 2020. She is also member of each of the audit committee,

remuneration committee and nomination committee.

Ms. Lam is currently an independent non-executive director of Century
Group International Holdings Limited (Stock code: 2113), the shares
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange, and of China Come Ride
New Energy Group Limited (Formerly known as KNK Holdings Limited)
(stock code: 8039), the shares of which are listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange. She is also a company secretary and an authorised
representative of a Hong Kong listed company.

Ms. Lam holds a bachelor degree in Accountancy from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, a master degree in Management from the
Macquarie University and a master degree in Applied Psychology from
City University of Hong Kong. She is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as the Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries), the Chartered Governance Institute
(formerly the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators)
and the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators. She is also an accredited
mediator of the Hong Kong Mediation Accreditation Association
Limited, a member and a qualified graphologist of the British Institute
of Graphologists.
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Prior to joining the Board, Ms. Lam has worked with an international
accounting firm and other leading listed and private group of
companies and has extensive experience in company secretarial practice,
assurance, treasury and finance. She is currently providing management
consultancy and corporate secretarial services to listed issuers and

private companies, and graphology consultancy and training services.

Mr. Fu Yan Ming (“Mr. Fu”), aged 59, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since May 2021.
He is also member of each of the audit committee and remuneration
committee.

Mr. Fu is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He obtained a Bachelors’ Degree of Business

Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Fu possess over 30 years of experience in accounting, audit,
internal control, financial management, strategic business planning,
corporate finance, merger and acquisition and corporate governance.
He has worked for various sizeable organizations including accounting
firms, pharmaceutical distribution company, TMT (Technology, Media
and Telecommunications) companies, manufacturing companies and
consultancy firm. During the past 15 years, he held various senior
positions including financial controller and company secretary in
main and GEM board listed companies of Hong Kong. Mr. Fu was an
executive director of On Real International Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8245) from
October 2016 to September 2019. Mr. Fu is currently an independent
non-executive director of Zhejiang United Investment Holdings Group
Limited (stock code: 8366), a company listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange. Currently, Mr. Fu is the finance director of a consultancy firm

which provide various advice to private investment funds.
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Mr. Tai Chin Ho (“Mr. Tai”), aged 39, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since October
2021. He is also member of each of the audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee.

Mr. Tai is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He obtained a Bachelors' Degree in Accounting and
Finance from University of Hertfordshire.

Mr. Tai possesses over 14 years of experience in professional accounting
as well as technology business operation. In the past, Mr. Tai was
responsible for financial management in a sizeable integrated fitting-
out company, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Currently, Mr. Tai holds directorship in various private
companies which are engaging in global intelligent logistics, eCommerce
with big data management and professional services businesses.
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The Directors hereby present their annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December, 2023 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 30 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the Year and a discussion
on the Group's future business development are provided in
the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 5 to 11. The
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are provided in the
Management Discussion and Analysis on page 10 and disclosed in the
section headed “Financial risk management and fair values of financial
instruments” in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in the Five-years Financial
Summary on page 176. The Group is committed to supporting the
environmental sustainability. The Group has complied with laws and
regulations regarding environmental protection and adopt effective
measures to achieve efficient use of resources and energy saving. Green
initiatives and measures have been adopted in the Group’s operation. A
separate Environmental, Social and Governance Report will be published
with the publication of this annual report. For details, please refer to
the Company’s website.

The Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations that
have significant impact on the operations of the Group. The Group
recognises that employees, customers and business partners are the keys
to sustainable development. The Group is committed to establishing
a close and caring relationship with our employees, providing quality
services to our customers and enhancing cooperation with our business
partners.
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The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases from
continuing operations attributable to the major customers and suppliers
respectively during the Year is as follows:

ARAERRAFEFENHREETEZERRMH
BEZRBECEXER 2 HERRBENHR
IR

Percentage of the Group’s total

EEEEEEZEAL
Sales Purchases
& g
The largest customer BRAER 13.4%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFR&E 38.9%
The largest supplier BAMER 33.3%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hREERSS 67.7%

During the year ended 31 December, 2023, none of the Directors, their
associates or any shareholder of the Company (who to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company's issued share
capital) had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

CHANGE OF COMPANY'S NAME

On 4 July, 2023, the English name of the Company was changed from
“Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited” to “Wuxi Life International
Holdings Group Limited” and the dual foreign name in Chinese of the
Company "BEHFEHEBEBRAB" was changed to "BEE4EEH
R EE B R/AB". The English and Chinese stock short name of
the Company were subsequently changed to “WUXI LIFE” and “1B & 4%
J&" with effect from 9:00 a.m. on 4 August, 2023. For further details,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 5 May, 2023,
29 June, 2023 and 1 August, 2023 and the circular of the Company
dated 6 June, 2023.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group and the state of the Group’s and the
Company'’s affairs for the year ended 31 December, 2023 are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 59 to 175.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December, 2023.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
As 31 December, 2023 and 2022, there was no reserves available for
distribution to owners of the Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of the interest-bearing borrowings of the Group are set out in
note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the share capital during the financial year are
set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The changes of Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report are as follows:

£F
REFEREEARESAMZEELHNT

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Liu Guanzhou (Chairman) 2 WM & (ETE)
Ms. Liu Xingmei PHEEL L

Mr. Choi Pun Lap BRI EE

Mr. Chung Man Lai BXERE
Non-executive Director ERITES

Ms. Li Hui Ling RERLZT
Independent non-executive Directors BIEHITES
Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria MmEZ L

Mr. Fu Yan Ming FRBLE

Mr. Tai Chin Ho BT AL

In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s Articles, Ms. Liu
Xingmei who was appointed as an executive Director on 30 November,
2023 will hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, will offer herself for re-election at the annual general
meeting.

In accordance with Article 108(A) of the Company’s Articles, Mr. Choi
Pun Lap and Mr. Tai Chin Ho will retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
"Biographies of Directors” of this annual report.

(appointed on 14 April, 2023)
(RZE_=FMOA+NHEZF)
(appointed on 30 November, 2023)
(RZB_=F+—A=+HEZE)

(resigned on 30 November, 2023)
(MZE2Z=F+—A=+H&11

(appointed on 14 February, 2023)
(RZEZ=FZF+HBEZT)
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DIRECTORS’ CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than normal statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December, 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") (Chapter 571 under
the laws of Hong Kong)) (i) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (iii) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:

EEGH

BRrEERIRBFEFAGEEEEZESE >
MERARBTAAIHERRDR —FEAR
HHEE(CREEFHERINMELEZRBES

EENRM - ERRKROKRES
ZHEERRE

R_B_=ZH+"_A=+—H ' BEERAER
BRERBREIE(EEREBEFRBERG (ME
FREAEE G ) (FEEBIHS571E) HXVED)
2D~ EBREROIESFER)AREKSE
HFREBEBROIEXVEBETRESD E MG AL
BRI zEGERXBE(BEREESR
BHERKAZEBRXHEREFRRAES
ZHE@mIKXA)  RNVEREBEFE S KB ER
Bl 553521 8 N X K FR i (I B sC M A 2
m AR A ) BIRIEGEM R B 585.46
E5/RHME AR RBTZEZRRA
N

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of director Capacity shares shareholding
EEH4 1% BH#®E HMARESSL
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(K&ET1) (B 3t2)
Mr. Liu Guanzhou Beneficial owner 370,000,000 (L) 29.07%
21 73 I o &= BEmBEAA
Notes: MrszE:
1. The letter “L" denotes a long position in the shares of the Company. 1. [LIERARARRO TR -
2 The total number of 1,272,640,000 shares in issue as at 31 December, 2023 has 2. RZTZ=F+_A=+—HBEBTRHEARK

been used for the calculation for the approximately percentage.

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the Year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable any of the Directors and chief executive, their respective spouses
or children under the age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures) of the
Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

Substantial Shareholders

To the best knowledge of Directors, as at 31 December, 2023, the
interests and short positions of the persons, other than Directors, in the
shares or underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

FTERRERORERRKRNBZ

A= N7

W=

TEREK

BEEMRAN RIZE=F+"A=+—
B> BRESFIHZALHNROAAERMKRN P
B AR BIREE 5K E K $3360F
AREGFZELMAZEZRXEWT:

Approximate
percentage of

Name of substantial shareholder Capacity Number of shares shareholding

FTERRUER BB 5% BMPHE HORESSLE
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(btat1) (Bt 5%2)

Ms. Zhang Jiahui (Notes) Interest of spouse 370,000,000 (L) 29.07%

REZZ T+ (M) BC (B 1 &

Mr. Zhang Dong Beneficial owner 143,565,955 (L) 11.28%

RE LA EmEBAA

Notes: g2

1. The letter “L" denotes a long position in the shares of the Company. 1. [LIERAR AR BT A ©

2. The total number of 1,272,640,000 shares in issue as at 31 December, 2023 has 2. RZZEZ=F+-_A=+—HEERTKRMDEH

been used for the calculation for the approximately percentage.

3. Ms. Zhang Jiahui is the spouse of Mr. Liu Guanzhou. Under the SFO, Ms.
Zhang is deemed to the interest in all the Company's share in which Mr. Liu is
interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December, 2023, the Company had
not been notified of other interests or short positions of any other
person (other than the Directors, chief executives and the substantial
shareholders of the Company) in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 8 May, 2013, the Company passed an ordinary resolution at the
annual general meeting to adopt a new share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme"”) whereby the Board may grant share options
to employees, directors, suppliers, consultants, agents and advisers or
any person, at its discretion, for the primary purpose to recognise and
motivate their contributions to the Group. The Share Option Scheme is
valid for a period of 10 years commencing from 8 May, 2013. Details of
the Share Option Scheme were set out in the circular of the Company
dated 27 March, 2013 and note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

On 29 April, 2016, the Company passed an ordinary resolution at the
extraordinary general meeting to amend the definition of “Eligible
Participant” of the Share Option Scheme and the definition of “Invested
Entity” be added to the Share Option Scheme (“Amendments to the
Share Option Scheme”). Details of the Amendments to the Share Option
Scheme are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 29 April,

2016 and the Company's circular dated 13 April, 2016.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 25 June, 2018,
shareholders approved the refreshment of the maximum number
of shares which may be allotted and issued upon the exercise of all
share options under the Share Option Scheme. As at the date of this
annual report, the total number of options available for granting
by the Company under the Share Option Scheme was 127,264,000,
representing 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on that date.

For the year ended 31 December, 2023 and up to date of this report,
the Company had not granted any options and no outstanding options
under the Share Option Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which the Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year under review.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered
into or existed during the year under review.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under Articles, or law of the
Cayman lIslands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE-YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five years is set out on page 176 of this annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out in note
24 to the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other that the Share Option Scheme of the Company, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that
requires the Company to enter into an agreement that will or may result
in the Company issuing shares, were entered into by the Group during
the Year or existed at the end of 2023.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December, 2023 and up to the date of this
report, as far as the Directors are aware of, none of the Directors has
an interest in any business which competes or may compete with the
business in which the Group is engaged.
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DIRECTORS’" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' RIGHTS
TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the Year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable any of the Directors and chief executive, their respective spouses
or children under the age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures) of the
Company or any other body corporate.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the section “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 12
to 32 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review, in draft form,
the Company’s annual report and accounts, half-year report, quarterly
reports and to provide advice and comments thereon to the Board. The
audit committee is also responsible for reviewing and supervising the
financial reporting process, risk management and internal control of
the Group. As at the date of this report, the audit committee comprises
three INEDs, namely Mr. Tai Chin Ho, Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria and Mr.

Fu Yan Ming. Mr. Tai Chin Ho is the chairman of the audit committee.

The audit committee has reviewed the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Company and discussed with the Board the
internal controls and financial reporting matters, including a review of
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December, 2023.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the INEDs a written annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Based on such confirmation, the Board considers all of the INEDs
are independent.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERG

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Changes in information of Directors since the date of the 2023 interim
report required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the Listing
Rules are as follows:

(1) Ms. Liu Xingmei was appointed as an executive director of the

Company, with effect from 30 November, 2023.

(2)  Mr. Chung Man Lai was resigned as an executive Director of the
Company with effect from 30 November, 2023.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December, 2023.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
As at the date of this report, the Company has complied with the public
float requirement under rule 11.23 of the GEM Listing Rules.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTION

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December, 2023 are set out in note 28 to
the consolidated financial statements. To the best knowledge of the
Directors, none of these related party transactions constitutes connected
transactions that need to be disclosed under the GEM Listing Rules.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of the Company, the Directors shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company from and against
all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or
any of them may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duty
of their respective offices or in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the
Directors, the company secretary of the Company and officers of the
Company for the financial year ended 31 December, 2023.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Reporting Period have
been audited by Fan, Chan & Co. Limited (“Fan Chan”). Fan Chan was
appointed as auditors of the Company on 31 January, 2023 for the
financial year ended 31 December, 2022 upon the resignation of Baker
Tilly Hong Kong Limited, who have acted as auditors of the Company
for the financial years ended 31 December, 2021 and 2020.

Fan Chan retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of Fan Chan as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Liu Guanzhou
Chairman

28 March, 2024
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SAIR 3 ER AT A PR 8]
Fan, Chan & Co. Limited

To the shareholders of Wuxi Life International Holdings
Group Limited (formerly known as Aurum Pacific
(China) Group Limited)

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wuxi Life
International Holdings Group Limited (formerly known as Aurum Pacific
(China) Group Limited) (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 59 to 175, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December,
2023, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December, 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Rooms 1007-1012, BB

10/F., K. Wah Centre, 1t A

191 Java Road, BEE19158
North Point, FEBREF L1012
Hong Kong 1007-1012%
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2(b) of the consolidated financial statements,
which stated that the Group incurred a net loss of HK$9,335,000 and
reported a net cash outflow of HK$4,898,000 from operating activities,
and as at 31 December, 2023, the Group’s net current liabilities and
total current liabilities amounted to HK$3,183,000 and HK$11,886,000
respectively while its total cash and cash equivalents amounted to
HK$3,198,000. These conditions, along with other matters as set forth
in note 2(b) to the consolidated financial statements, indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
over the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matters described in the
“Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to

be communicated in our report.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matters
FEEFEE

FEEFFEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BRANBHAPEEZFEZAE

Impairment assessment of goodwill

BEZ R EF G

We identified annual impairment assessment of goodwill
of the Group as a key audit matter due to the involvement
of significant judgements and assumptions in determining
the recoverable amounts of cash generating units (“CGUs")
to which goodwill have been allocated, which are derived
from value in use calculations using discounted cash flow
models.

BMABA EERECEHEFERENGA—BIESS
FE AATCEBECESREmENReELB8U(REE
TEUNZAIWBEERIRERFE  REBER > EEA
MR REAAEFHAEE-

As at 31 December, 2023, the Group's goodwill was
allocated to the CGU engaged in software platform
business in Hong Kong and amounted to approximately
HK$1,728,000 before recognition of impairment loss for
the year then ended. Details are disclosed in notes 13 and
32 to the consolidated financial statements.
R_BE_=F+"_B=+—H> EBEEERXEIBEEX
BEEEZREBEN BEESPEEENEBNSE
M TaEH RS ELEN > £8840/51,728,0008 7T °
FERGEYBHRERME13K32IRE -

Our audit procedures in relation to the management'’s
impairment assessment of goodwill of Group’s
subsidiaries included:
EPmEEEY S£ENBARZEEETHET
BN REFEE:

Understand the Group's impairment assessment
process, including the impairment model, basis of
allocation of goodwill to CGUs, the preparation of
the cash flow projections (“Cashflow Forecasts”)
and key management assumptions adopted in the
preparation of the Cashflow Forecasts through
enquiries with the management;
FBABAEEE > BE SERZEETGEERE
BEREREY - AEQRETREELBUZEE
ReneBl(ResnEgRlGRE REE
BrzfghiasneaBARANEIERR;

Challenging the appropriateness of the key
assumptions adopted by the management in the
preparation of the Cashflow Forecasts, such as the
budgeted gross margin and forecast growth rates,
and discount rates applied and comparing them
with available market data and our knowledge of
the current market development; and
EREEENRNRERERARKEPAERMNT
ZREFVAEMN  WEERENBEENE &
ABEXRRAREX U HBETESHN ™S
BEREMBETHERNBERETLER &
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) FEEFFEER
Key Audit Matters How our audit addressed the key audit matters
FEEFEE BEMRNEBHPEEZZEZ5ZE

Impairment assessment of goodwill (Continued)

8 Z i E 5Tl ()

Management's assessment of goodwill impairment is highly ° Comparing the historical cash flows forecast
judgmental and involved high estimation uncertainty which against the performance of CGUs to test the
is dependent on certain significant inputs including the accuracy of management'’s projections.

growth rates, budgeted gross margins and discount rates e BFEFNRENEFANRRBEELEMNXRR
applied, all of which vary based on the relevant industry EHETER AIREEEEANERE -

growth and management’s expectations for the market
development of software platform business in Hong Kong.
EEEHEERNENTGRAYE > BESREhmETE
EM BRARETERAAELN  GQFEEEXR -BEE
MERMEANEIBE EZEERYIRABREITE
BEREEEHEERGFTEEBE M S ERMNTERM
BRRFERE -

As disclosed in note 13, impairment loss of HK$1,728,000
has been recognised against the goodwill allocated
to software platform operation for the year ended 31
December, 2023 (2022: HK$18,508,000).

MM EIBPIIRE EMBE_S_=ZF+_A=+—
HEFEI R ERGTEoXB 2 ERIBAEBE
1,728,000 7t (—F — — 4 : 18,508,000 7T) ©
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matters
TEBHEE

FEEFFEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

RURBHPREZFEZHE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment (“PPE”) and right-of-use assets (“ROU")
ME- -BERSZE(ME BERIKEBNIREAEEE(EREEEN)ZRHE

We have identified impairment assessment of PPE and
ROU as a key audit matter because of its significance to
the consolidated financial statements and because the
value-in-use calculations involve significant management
judgement and estimates. As at 31 December, 2023,
the net carrying amounts of PPE and ROU assets before
recognition of impairment loss for the year then ended
were approximately HK$272,000 and HK$1,278,000
respectively.

EMEME - BREAREREAREEZ RETGES
TEEHFE REAENGEYHTRENEZN X
TREBEAEIREEBE KFEB KM - N2 2=
FH+_A=+—H YVE -BEEXERERAEEER
BAEEZALFEEREGEANERZFEDINAOA
272,00078 75 521,278,00078 7T ©

Management’s assessment of PPE and ROU impairment is
highly judgmental and involved high estimation uncertainty,
the assessment was based on the recoverable amount
which is determined based on the higher of the value-in-
use and fair value less costs of disposal. The value-in-use
is calculated from cash flow projections for the remaining
lease periods using data from the Group's internal forecasts
and as such relies upon management assumptions, such as
the estimates of future performance and the discount rate.
EEEHYE BEERIKXERERAEEEZ RABEMNT
iRz B e At TREN TG RER
WEctE ZEBHRETABERATERLEENE
MEFARESEET FERAEBENER E£EBERNINE
A EREENGFEERNREERERAUAESE A
IERBREIRENRE » MHRREERAIRENME o

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of PPE and ROU included:
EPMEEEYYE BEAXREBEREHAEEEZ
WA LIE T EE !

o understanding the management’s internal control
and assessment process of impairment assessment
of PPE and ROU;

e ERBEEEANNETNRNE -BMERZMHE RS
RERETEZ T ERER;

o considering and assessing the historical accuracy of
management’s budgeting processes;
. ZRETHEEEBTIEEBEZENERM;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matters How

FEEFFEE

our audit addressed the key audit matters

TEBEHFR RURBHPREZFEZHE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment (“PPE”) and right-of-use assets (“ROU") (Continued)

ME- -BERRXFE(ME BERRBEIREREEE ((EAE

As disclosed in note 11 and note 14, impairment loss of .
HK$272,000 and HK$1,278,000 has been recognised
against the PPE and ROU belonging to software platform
operation for the year ended 31 December, 2023.

MM EN R E4FTRE  RBEE- T _=ZF+"A4
=+—HBLEFE BV E BREARBERBEBIN®
HEeESNFERAREERD NERIE272,0008 Tk o
1,278,00078 75 ©
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BE)) ZiREGE)

conducting in-depth discussions with management
about the cash flow projections used in the
value-in-use calculations and assessing the
appropriateness of the significant assumptions and
critical judgement areas which affect the value-in-
use calculations;
HEREMERBEERBAZREREEA
ETRANW RTEEEEREESEZE
ABEEREEFEHFEZEEML;

benchmarking the growth rates and discount
rates used in the value-in-use calculations against
independent industry data and comparable
companies; and
MBITE#RBRIELERATLEE @A 6E
BEBEIEXEENE RENINIEE ) &

evaluating and assessing the appropriateness
of the key assumptions used in the value-in-use
calculations.
TEERTLEREENEXRANTIERRNS
TR
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagements, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to

continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Fan, Chan & Co. Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Leung Kwong Kin
Practising Certificate Number: P03702
Hong Kong, 28 March, 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEEmR

For the year ended 31 December, 2023
HE_Z_-_F+ZA=+—HLHFE

2023 2022
s —— =
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
k= T#ET FET
(Restated)
(&)
Continuing operations THRREETR
Revenue U & 3 24,493 21,436
Cost of sales H & A A (8,851) (8,736)
Gross profit ES¥| 15,642 12,700
Other income, net HMUW A F 2B 4 107 1,221
Administrative expenses THERE X (10,498) (6,433)
Research and development expenses B 5B 2 (11,396) (8,585)
Selling and distribution expenses & K o0 8H B 2 (2,104) (2,340)
Impairment loss on goodwill BmERERE 13 (1,728) (18,508)
Impairment loss on property, ME - -BERHKE
plant and equipment EREN, SE=! 11 (272) -
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FTREBSERERIE 14 (1,278) -
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) FEURBR RUR B8,
loss on trade receivables (R ERIERED) (67) 67
Loss from operations REE1E (11,594) (21,878)
Finance costs EiE=ga7N (890) (274)
Loss before taxation from continuing REFEREXER
operations b 72 BT 5 48 5 (12,484) (22,152)
Income tax credit FriEMik % 6 100 105
Loss for the year from continuing REREEHR
operations FEFIE (12,384 (22,047)
Discontinued operation ERIEEEER
Profit for the year from discontinued BRIEREERE
operation FE &AM 7 3,049 76
Loss for the year FEEE (9,335) (21,971)
BELEEREREBRBRAT 59
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEEmR

For the year ended 31 December, 2023
HE_Z_-_F+ZA=+—HLHFE

2023 2022
s —— =
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
k= T#ET FET
(Restated)
(&)
Attributable to: WTALTEMS:
Owners of the Company KRBEBEA
— From continuing operations —REFEREER (11,591) (21,945)
— From discontinued operation —REBEREREXT 3,049 76
(8,542) (21,869)
Non-controlling interests JEERE R
— From continuing operations —REFEREER (793) (102)
— From discontinued operation —EBRIEREET - -
(793) (102)
Loss for the year FEBE (9,335) (21,971)
Loss per share SKREE 10
Basic and diluted (HK cents) B AR #58 GBI
— From continuing operations —REFEREER (0.91) (1.72)
— From discontinued operation —KEERIEEEER 0.24 0.01
(0.67) (1.71)
The notes on pages 68 to 175 form part of the consolidated financial H68EEI17TS B2 ARG EMHFHREZ

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEBETkEMEARER

For the year ended 31 December, 2023
HE_Z_-_F+ZA=+—HLHFE

2023 2022
—E-=F =
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET FExT
(Restated)
(&5
Loss for the year FERIE (9,335) (21,971)
Other comprehensive income FEHEMEZ2EKE  SNBRERIE
for the year, net of nil tax
ltems that may be reclassified HBEEM2EEER2ER:
subsequently to profit or loss:
- Exchange differences on translation —MBEINIEEBHBRERZ
of financial statements of foreign & &2 = &8
operations - 68
Total comprehensive expense FEXERAZALE
for the year (9,335) (21,903)
Attributable to: MTFALEA:
Owners of the Company ZN/NETEZ SN
— From continuing operations —REFEREER (11,591) (21,900)
— From discontinued operation —REERIEREXT 3,049 76
(8,542) (21,824)
Non-controlling interests EERER
— From continuing operations —REFEREER (793) (79)
— From discontinued operation —KEBERIEREER - =
(793) (79)
Total comprehensive expense FEXERBAZALE
for the year (9,335) (21,903)

The notes on pages 68 to 175 form part of the consolidated financial SH68EEI17TS B2 ARG EHFHRERZ
AAEED

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A MBIK IR

As at 31 December, 2023
RZEZ=F+ZHA=+—H

2023 2022
—EZ= ==
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
o= FET FET
(Restated)
€<=x)
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - -BERKE 11 - 304
Intangible assets BEEE 12 - -
Goodwill e 13 - 1,728
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14 - 607
Loans receivable B & = 6 = 4,908
Deferred tax assets FIERIEE 23 = -
- 7,547
Current assets MBEE
Trade and other receivables JE UK BR =k e E fth FE U Fk 15 5,505 7,578
Loans receivables FEW & = 6 = -
Interest receivables & s I 2 6 = -
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBESEEY 17 3,198 4,445
8,703 12,023
Current liabilities mEAE
Other payables HAth FE (T =R 8 846 2,154
Contract liabilities aHEE 19 6,641 7,361
Interest-bearing borrowings B 28 R 20 790 3,808
Amount due to a director R —IEFEERR 21 2,852 -
Lease liabilities HEAaRE 22 757 603
11,886 13,926
Net current liabilities B AERE (3,183) (1,903)
Total assets less current liabilities EEHERRSER (3,183) 5,644
62 Wauxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A MBIK IR

As at 31 December, 2023
RZEZ=F+ZHA=+—H

2023 2022
—EZ=F =
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
Jiok:3 FHET FAET
(Restated)
(e85
Non-current liabilities
Deferred taxation 23 - 100
Defined benefit plan obligations 24 852 751
Lease liabilities 22 526 19
1,378 870
Net (liabilities)/assets (BEFHE)EEFE (4,561) 4,774
Capital and reserves
Share capital 26(a) 50,906 50,906
Reserves (50,102) (41,560)
Total equity attributable to ERATREBEAEGEDELE
owners of the Company 804 9,346
Non-controlling interests (5,365) (4,572)
(Capital deficiency)/Total equity (B g4l HERiEEE (4,561) 4,774

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28

EETR_SE_NE=F_+N\BHERE

March, 2024. T8 o
Liu Guanzhou Choi Pun Lap
205 M 8|
Director Director
EE EFE
The notes on pages 68 to 175 form part of the consolidated financial SH68EEI17TS B2 ARG EHFHRERZ
statements. AHRLER D ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Ak L
..\7r |:| m & @j 15§
For the year ended 31 December, 2023

HE_Z - -_F+°HA=-+—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FRAREAELR
Non-
Share Capital Capital  Exchange Other Accumulated controlling
Share capital  premium reserve surplus reserve reserve losses Total interests Total

B RGEE EFEE  EsBE  ERHE  HtHE  2HER ay FEkEs @
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TET TEn TEn TEn

(note (note (note (note (note

26(b)() 26(b)i) 26(b)il)) 26(b)iv) 26(b)v)

Bz (B3 (B3 (B3 (M3

6000) 260 260))  26)W)  26(b))

Balance 1 January, 2022 (originally stated) ~ RZZ5-Z%-F-R2Z

EAUED 50906 381490 247 16,699 (44) (102 (20001 31375 (4493) 2688
Adjustments (note 2(c) BE (K20 - - - - - - (209) (209) - (205)
At 1 January, 2022 (restated) W-%-Z%-B-H
(2 E5) 50,906 381,490 2427 16,699 (44) (102) (420,206) 31,170 (4,493) 26,677
Changes in equity for 2022: CRICEZREEY:
Loss for the year (restated) EEBB(BE) - - - - - - (21,869 (21,869) (102 (2197
Other comprehensive income for the year, EEEMPENS SNk
net of il tax ZiE
- Exchange differences on translation of ~HRENEERHEERLZ
financial statements of foreign operations ERER - - - - 4 - - 45 3 68

Total comprehensive income!/(expense) EE2EKE /(AR 4E
for the year (restated) (ZEF) - - - - 45 - (21,869) (21,824) (79) (21,903)

At31December, 2022 and 1 January, 2023 ~ RZEZZE+ZR=+-Hk

(restated) “E_ZF-A-A(KE5) 50906 381490 2401 16,699 1 (102)  (@42,075) 9346 (4572 4,774
Changes in equity for 2023: CECCEZREEE:
Loss for the year EEER - - - - - - (8,542) (8,542) (193) (9,335)
Total comprehensive expense for the year ~ FE2ERXAE - - - - - - (8,542) (8,542) (193) (9,335)
At 31 December, 2023 KZBZZ%+-B=+-H 50,906 381,490 2427 16,699 1 (102) (450,617) 804 (5,365) 4,561)

The notes on pages 68 to 175 form part of the consolidated financial F68BZE1/SE M ARG EaMBEREZ
statements. AERER D ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n‘l'F EE% ~ﬁ§§

For the year ended 31 December, 2023
BE_ZT=—F+-A=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—E-Z=F . —
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
k= T#ET FET
(Restated)
(e85
Operating activities REEE
Loss before taxation bx 5 Al K5 18
— From continuing operations —REFEREER (12,484) (22,152)
— From discontinued operation —KEBERIEREER 7 3,049 76
Adjustments for: R
— Bank interest income —RITF B WA = —*
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net —HEWNB AR 2 W= FEE (6) -
— Gain on sale of discontinuing —HEKRLEREEHE
operations, net W 8 3 5E 7(b) (3,785) -
— Reversal of impairment loss on — B BRI E BB EE
loan receivables 7(b) (228) -
- Depreciation of property, plant and —ME - -BERREINE
equipment 169 155
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets —FERARBEERE 790 816
— Finance costs — B E A 890 274
— Fixed assets written off —EMEEEEE 4 =
— Written-off of deposits —MiiHZ = 1,969 -
— Impairment loss on goodwill —EEBEHE 13 1,728 18,508
— Impairment loss on property, —ME - -BERZLERE
plant and equipment B 18 11 272 =
— Impairment loss on right-of-use assets —{FA# & E AR 14 1,278 -
— Impairment/(reversal of impairment) — R FURERE
loss on trade receivables CRi 1B BB D) 67 (67)
EELEERERERSRAA 65
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n‘l'F EE% ~ﬁ§§

For the year ended 31 December, 2023
BE_ZT=—F+-A=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—EZ=HF . —
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
g3 FHET FET
(Restated)
(&)
Operating loss before CEBEEHAIZ
working capital changes REEE (6,287) (2,390)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and & U AR TR e ELAth & UL =X
other receivables (38 0) 3,174 (2,276)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables Hah = CRib) /18 (1,166) 162
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities & & &1& G /D) /10 (720) 2,709
Increase in defined benefit plan RESZ @t FZFEIEM
obligations 101 751
Net cash used in operations CEFMARERR (4,898) (1,044)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid B EBNIER = -
Net cash used in operating activities K2 EBFIARSFEE (4,898) (1,044)
Investing activities KREEE
Interest received BUFHE —* —*
Proceeds from disposal of HEWB AR Z S RIE
subsidiaries, net R 30(b) 5,648 -
Payment for purchase of property, BEYVE BERZEN
plant and equipment NN (141) (191)
Net cash generated from/(used in) KREEBFRE(FFH)
investing activities &P 5,507 (191)
66 Wauxi Life International Holdings Group Limited

Annual Report 2023



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n‘l'F EE% ~ﬁ§§

For the year ended 31 December, 2023

BE_F_=-"F+"_A=+—HLFE

2023 2022
—EZ=F =
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
g3 FHET FET
(Restated)
(&)
Financing activities LB EE
Capital element of lease rentals paid BENHEEHTELRILD 17(b) (800) (805)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENAERSFESD 17(b) (28) (51)
Interest paid BAHE 17(b) (862) (223)
New loans from third parties REF=ZFZMER 17(b) 7,356 2,900
Repayment of other loans BEEHMERX 17(b) (10,374) -
Advance from a director BEEEW 2,852 -
Net cash (used in)/generated R EEEN (FRE) FRi
from financing activities HEFHE (1,856) 1,821
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RERBEELEEMOERD)
cash equivalents bl IR (1,247) 586
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—BZHRER
1 January HEZEY 4,445 3,791
Effect of foreign exchange rate EREgHTE
changes - 68
Cash and cash equivalents at BW+ZB=+—HzZHREXK
31 December REEXEEY 3,198 4,445
* Below HK$1,000 * £ 71,0008 7T °
The notes on pages 68 to 175 form part of the consolidated financial HF68EEI17TS B2 EAXRGEHFHRERZ
statements. AARRE D o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17

=R R

For the year ended 31 December, 2023

BwE

68

_E_=F+ZR=+—HLEE

COMPANY INFORMATION

Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited (formerly known
as Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited) (the “Company”) is
an exempted company with limited liability incorporated in
the Cayman Islands. Its shares are listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
Company has its registered office at Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, the Cayman
Islands. The principal place of business of the Company was Room
A6-D, 12/F, Block A, Hong Kong Industrial Centre, 489-491 Castle
Peak Road, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon, Hong Kong and changed to
Room H, 2/F, Manson Industrial Building, 8 A Kung Ngam Village
Lane, Shaukeiwan, Hong Kong with effect from 15 June, 2023.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 30(a).

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December, 2023 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the "Group”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000") which is the Company’s
functional currency and the Group’s presentation currency.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

Wauxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
R 3

R %5 ¥ 2% BfY X

For the year ended 31 December, 2023
HE_Z_-_F+ZA=+—HLHFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group as set out in
note 2(c).

A summary of the material accounting policies adopted by
the Group is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

2. ERESHERGE

(a) EBHIEB (&)

ARG AEERME FTRA
EEASHRBEREMA TR
AIRAZ ] REEESTEEBMH
HREER > FBEMNMEE20) °

FEBFRKMZERGSHERM
ZHINWT -

(b) HREGHBREZEE

ERGREHBREMAZIER
o S A A o

WMENMOEBVBRSEENZR
aMBRE FEEEEBFLA
B~ b 5 RER 0 UL S )
L RBREFZERRZIKA
UREE -B8E - WABRRAXZ
EREW - ZEEHARBEBRR
BUBERRRBB/EAMBR
TECEZZEHMEARSER
BRI RGN A5 E AN B2k
RSNz EERBRIREE
ERFER R Z 2R - BRERT
BEE RN mEME o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A

17

=

R %5 ¥ 2% BfY X

For the year ended 31 December, 2023

BwE

TECTZF+AZ=+—HILEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

70

(b)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 32.

During the year, the Group incurred a net loss of
HK$9,335,000 and reported a net cash outflow of
HK$4,898,000 from operating activities, and as at 31
December, 2023, the Group's net current liabilities and
total current liabilities amounted to HK$3,183,000 and
HK$11,886,000 respectively while its total cash and cash
equivalents amounted to HK$3,198,000. These conditions
indicate the existence of material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. The validity of the use of the going
concern basis in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements is dependent upon the Group’s ability
to generate adequate cash flows in order to meet its
obligations as and when the obligations fall due.

Wauxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A

17

=

R %5 ¥ 2% BfY X

For the year ended 31 December, 2023

BwE

TECTZF+AZ=+—HILEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

The directors of the Company have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity and performance of the
Group and its available sources of financing in assessing
whether the Group has sufficient financial resources to
continue as a going concern. In the opinion of the directors,
the Group will be able to continue to operate as a going
concern in the foreseeable future and they are satisfied
that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis, after taking into

consideration the following measures:

- Subsequent to the end of reporting period, the
Group has obtained a committed loan facility of
approximately HK$10,000,000 from a financial
institution, who is the lender of the Group's
borrowings as at 31 December, 2023 for a period of 15
months from the date of approval of the consolidated
financial statements, for the purpose of (i) repaying
the existing outstanding loan principal and interest in

full and (ii) business use of the Group.

- On 9 February, 2024, the Board of Directors proposed
to conduct the capital reorganisation and rights
issue on the basis of two (2) rights share (“Rights
Share(s)”) for every one (1) existing Adjusted Shares
held on the record date at the subscription price of
HK$0.12 per Rights Share, to raise up to approximately
HK$30,543,000 before expenses by way of issuing up

to 254,528,000 Rights Shares.

- The director who had advanced to the Group
amounting to HK$2,852,000 as at 31 December,
2023 had committed not to demand repayment of the
amount due by the Group for at least fifteen months
from the date of issue of the consolidated financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December, 2023

BwE

TECTZF+AZ=+—HILEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

72

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

Notwithstanding the above, material uncertainty exists as to
whether the Group is able to achieve its plans and measures
as described above, which incorporate assumptions about
future events and conditions that are subject to inherent
uncertainty. Should the Group be unable to continue to
operate as a going concern, it may be unable to realise
its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course
of business. Adjustments would have to be made to write
down the carrying value of assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any future liabilities which might
arise and to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as
current assets and liabilities respectively. The effects of these
adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

Changes in accounting policies

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group.

- HKFRS
amendments

17 Insurance Contracts and Related

- Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement
2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies

- Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

- Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

- Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform —
Pillar Two Model Rule

Wauxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to the standards listed above in the
current year had no material effect on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior year
and on the disclosures set out in the consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12: Deferred Tax related

to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exemption such that it does not apply to transactions that
give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences
on initial recognition such as leases and decommissioning
liabilities. For leases and decommissioning liabilities, the
associated deferred tax assets (to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary difference can be utilized) and
liabilities are required to be recognised from the beginning
of the earliest comparative period presented, with any
cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to retained
earnings or other components of equity at that date. For all
other transactions, the amendments are applied to those
transactions that occur after the beginning of the earliest

period presented.

Prior to the amendments, the Group did not apply the
initial recognition exemption to lease transactions and had
recognised the related deferred tax, except that the Group
previously determined the temporary difference arising
from a right-of-use asset and the related lease liability on a
net basis on the basis they arise from a single transaction.
Following the amendments, the Group has determined the
temporary differences in relation to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. The details of the impacts on each
financial statement line item and loss per share arising from
the application of the amendments are set out below.

2. ERESHERGE
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

74

(c)

(CONTINUED)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
Changes in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) — Long Service
Payment (“LSP") offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong
As disclosed in note 24, the Group are obliged to pay LSP
to Hong Kong employees under certain circumstances.
Meanwhile, the Group makes mandatory MPF contributions
to the trustee who administers the assets held in a trust
solely for the retirement benefits of each individual
employee. Offsetting of LSP against an employee’s
accrued retirement benefits derived from employers’
MPF contributions was allowed under the Employment
Ordinance (Cap.57). In June 2022, the Government of
the HKSAR gazetted the Employment and Retirement
Schemes Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment)
Ordinance 2022 (the “"Amendment Ordinance”) which
abolishes the use of the accrued benefits derived from
employers’ mandatory MPF contributions to offset severance
payment and LSP (the “Abolition”). The Abolition will
officially take effect on 1 May, 2025 (the “Transition Date”).
In addition, under the Amendment Ordinance, the last
month’s salary immediately preceding the Transition Date
(instead of the date of termination of employment) is used
to calculate the portion of LSP in respect of the employment
period before the Transition Date.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting implications
of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in
Hong Kong” which provides guidance for the accounting
for the offsetting mechanism and the impact arising from
abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in Hong
Kong. In particular, the guidance indicates that entities may
account for the accrued benefits derived from mandatory
MPF contributions that are expected to be used to reduce
the LSP payable to an employee as deemed contributions by
that employee towards the LSP.
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For the year ended 31 December, 2023
HE_Z_-_F+ZA=+—HLHFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXRTEHBEK(E

(CONTINUED)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (c) B FEEE(F)

Changes in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) — Long Service
Payment (“"LSP") offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong
(Continued)

However, applying this approach, upon the enactment of
the Amendment Ordinance in June 2022, it is no longer
permissible to apply the practical expedient in paragraph
93(b) of HKAS 19 that previously allowed such deemed
contributions to be recognised as reduction of service
cost (negative service cost) in the period the contributions
were made; instead these deemed contributions should
be attributed to periods of service in the same manner
as the gross LSP benefit. To better reflect the substance
of the abolition of the offsetting mechanism, the Group
has changed its accounting policy in connection with its
LSP liability and has applied the above HKICPA guidance
retrospectively. The cessation of applying the practical
expedient in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 in conjunction
with the enactment of the Amendment Ordinance resulted
in a catch-up profit or loss adjustment in June 2022 for the
service cost up to that date and consequential impacts on
current service cost, interest expense and remeasurement
effects from changes in actuarial assumptions for the rest
of 2022 (see note 24, with the corresponding adjustment
to the comparative carrying amount of the LSP liability. This
change in accounting policy did not have any impact on the
opening balance of equity at 1 January, 2022.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

76

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
Changes in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) — Long Service
Payment (“"LSP") offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong
(Continued)

Impacts of application of amendments to HKFRSs and
new HKICPA guidance on the abolition of the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism on the consolidated financial
statements

The following table summarises the impacts of the changes
in accounting policies as a result of application of the
HKICPA guidance on the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism and Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax
related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction on the Group’s consolidated statement of profit
or loss and loss per share for the year ended 31 December,
2023:

2. ERESHERGE

(c)

Bt EE B (F)

BB R B & B 98 # 1E A
B ((BEL) - RARE
= (IRIREZ) IEHEF I E
S BN E BTN AE
155 E B & 5 B R & E)
(&
ERGEITEEMBBREENR
FRREHBRRE -—RIRSIEHE
HEHEBEHAQEIESIHER
BUMBRREMNTE
TERBLEABRNBUEBRES -
RREEHEGNEESHMA
BIESIREB G ERF125%E
SIABEBE-—RPELENEERE
BEERNELREMERMN S5
HREFHAERHE_T_=
F+ZB=+—HLEEENKRS
BaiUhESRGIEERNTE

Effect of
adoption of Effect of
the HKICPA  Amendments
guidance to HKAS 12 Total
RRAEHE BHEGEL
B AE F125%
HaINEE BIFNTE et
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FTHET THET
Impact on loss for the year HEEGRBNTE
Increase in cost of sales 4 & Bk A< 38 0 10 - 10
Increase in administrative expenses TEEZEM 15 - 15
Increase in research and development expenses  Hff & B 37 12 66 - 66
Increase in selling and distribution expenses 6 & K 7t B 218 A0 10 - 10
Increase in income tax credit Fr{S 7% 1% % 15 40 - (100) (100)
Increase in loss for the year attributable EREEBARGLRE
to the owners of the Company SECEXEBNEE
from continuing operations S HRIE 0 101 (100) 1

The application of amendments to HKFRSs and the HKICPA
guidance on the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism did not have material impact on the Group's loss
per share for the year ended 31 December, 2023.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
Changes in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) — Long Service
Payment (“LSP") offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong
(Continued)

Impacts of application of amendments to HKFRSs and
new HKICPA guidance on the abolition of the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism on the consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

The following table summarises the impacts of the changes
in accounting policies as a result of application of the
HKICPA guidance on the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism and Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax
related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction on the Group’s consolidated statement of profit
or loss and loss per share for the year ended 31 December,

2. ERESHERGE

(c)

B EEE ()

JE B B R BUH & B 9% Fl 1 4
Bz ((BBEL)) —RAARE
T ((ERE)IEHEF B E
R B E B E AT A
f(s‘?i/ﬁ‘ﬁgﬁﬁ EErINEEE
=
FERREIIERAMBRELENR
FARBGHERE - RIRSIKHE
BN E AT A TS5 BT
EHMBRREMNTE (H)
TRMELERENEBERE S —
EREEHEFNSEGSTAR
B REEGFERFEI2RE
AR EE—RGEANEERS
EERNEZEREMERN G5
BEEHHAERHRE_T -
F+ZA=+T—HLEFENESE

2022: BaRUAKSRBEBERNTE !
Effect of
adoption of Effect of
As previously the HKICPA  Amendments
reported guidance to HKAS 12 As restated
BREE EHAgHEN
BHAAE  FENREETE
MERER RomEE iop-A mE5|
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TER TER TAR
Consolidated statement of profit or loss HE-T-”%+-B=1+-H
for the year ended 31 December, 2022: LEENEEBEER:
Cost of sales HEMA (8,677) (59) = (8.736)
Gross profit el 12,759 (59) - 12,700
Administrative expenses THRAZ (6,269) (164) = (6.433)
Research and development expenses Emy (8,129) (456) - (8,585)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEES (2,268) (72) = (2,340)
Loss from operations REER (21,127) (751) - (21,878)
Loss before taxation from continuing REFERELHIRRA
operations B# (21,401) (751) - (22,152)
Income tax credit FBREe - - 105 105
Loss for the year from continuing operations SESELK I EEFR (21,401) (751) 105 (22,047)
Loss for the year EEFR (21,325) (751) 105 (21,971)
Loss attributable to owners of the Company ~ FAF#H AR
- From continuing operations -REFBELELH (21,299) (751) 105 (21,945)
Loss per share gREE
Basic and diluted (HK cents) EEREEGEL
~ From continuing operations -REFEREER (1.67) (0.06) 0.01 (1.72)
— From discontinued operation - REBAILLEEY 0.01 - - 0.01
(1.66) (0.06) 0.01 (1.71)
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
Changes in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) — Long Service
Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism in Hong
Kong (Continued)

Impacts of application of amendments to HKFRSs and
new HKICPA guidance on the abolition of the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism on the consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

The following table summarises the impacts of the
changes in accounting policies as a result of application
of amendments to HKFRSs and the HKICPA guidance on
the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism and
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction on the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position at 31 December,

2. ERESHERGE

(c)

&3 B R B ()
JE BRI R B 3 A
B (I 2) — & B
2 (IEMR2)) IEHBE T
HEBNEERHTAR
B3I E R B R
V=1
ERGEITIEBUBREENR
RRECHSERE - RIRS MR
B MEREHMAEIESIHER
AMBRREMNTE (B
TREBREALEBITIESEMBR
SHEAREAREBHBREE - KRR
TIRHE G NS B G AEE
SIkEBESHERB2FET R
BE—RZEEINEEREBESR
BBV SEFR TE T B B A & 5T EUER
EHHAEEPR D —F+=

2022 B=+—HWREMBRARE
Ing:oR-A N
Effect of
adoption of Effect of
As previously the HKICPA  Amendments
reported guidance to HKAS 12 As restated
BREE FBgHEN
BHMAE ERRETS
PTER RomEE i} RE]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
Consolidated statement of financial position HR-Z--F+-HF=+-H
as at 31 December, 2022 MEEMBERAE:
Deferred tax liabilities EEREAE - - (100) (100)
Defined benefit plan obligations RERGAUES - (751) - (751)
Total non-current liabilities FRBaBRE (19) (751) (100) (870)
Net assets EEEE 5,625 (751) (100) 4,774
Reserves it (40,709) (751) (100) (41,560)
Total equity attributable to owners FRAARBARGEGZEE
of the Company 10,197 (751) (100) 9,346
Total equity ERBH 5,625 (751) (100) 4,774
Reconciliation of profit before taxation to BE_E__#+°R=+-H
cash generated from operations for year LEERRAGNELEEE
ended 31 December, 2022 (note 5(h)) H3R & B 5 BR (I 3E5(b)
Loss before taxation from continuing operation ~ REFBLELBZBRRAHER (21,401) (751) - (22,152)
Increase in defined benefit plan obligations RERmT B EHEM - 751 - 751
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXEFHBEGE
(CONTINUED)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (c) B KFEESE(B)

Changes in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) — Long Service
Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism in Hong
Kong (Continued)

Impacts of application of amendments to HKFRSs and
new HKICPA guidance on the abolition of the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism on the consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

The following table summarises the impacts of the
changes in accounting policies as a result of application of
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction on the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position at 1 January,

P& B R 1 BH & B A
wx ((#REE) - RIKRE
F(RREZ) BB EFIE
FTEENEECGT NG
FETIM B E B 5t K E)
(%
ERSETEEMBEREENR
ARBCHBES - RIRSIEHH
BB EAGHMARIEIHER
BMBREEMNTE(E)
TRBLEBE L THERFR
RETFBE—LZELENEE
R & 65 R 60 E LA T E

T TE-RB—HNGEEMBRR

2022: REMNTE:
Effect of
As previously Amendments
reported to HKAS 12 As restated
EBEER
ERPLACHEN
0 5% Al 2 R WEE RES
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FTHET THET
Consolidated statement of WZ_E-__F—HB—H®
financial position as at REUHRKRER:
1 January, 2022:
Deferred tax liabilities BIERIBEE - (205) (205)
Total non-current liabilities FEMEBERERE (510) (205) (715)
Net assets BEEFME 26,882 (205) 26,677
Reserves G4 (19,531) (205) (19,736)
Total equity attributable to NATEAANEGES
owners of the Company 4z 31,375 (205) 31,170
Total equity HEREEE 26,882 (205) 26,677
BELEEREREBRBRAT 79
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(CONTINUED)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
Changes in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident fund (“MPF”) — Long Service
Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism in Hong

(c)

Kong (Continued)

Impacts of application of amendments to HKFRSs and
new HKICPA guidance on the abolition of the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism on the consolidated financial

statements (Continued)

The Group has not applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective
for the current accounting period. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new and
amendments to HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state
whether these new and amendments to HKFRSs would have
a significant impact on its results of operations and financial

position:

o Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28,
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

e Amendments to HKFRS 16, Lease Liability in

a Sale and Leaseback

e Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification
of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current
and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)

¢ Amendments to HKAS 1, Non-current
Liabilities with Covenants

e Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7,
Supplier Finance Arrangements

¢ Amendments to HKAS 21, Lack of
Exchangeability

Wauxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or after

To be determined

1 January, 2024

1 January, 2024

1 January, 2024

1 January, 2024

1 January, 2025
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and
in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a

financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to equity owners of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the equity

owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment

losses (see note 2(i)(ii)).

2. E*ﬁn-l-ﬁiﬁ(mﬁ)

(d) W& LRERIFERERZ

MBABIERERIERZER -

RWEBRB ZREBERER G
HREEZEGELKLEBRSHA
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KEHE2HUHEHE EERNRTH
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BHRREZEBEZBRT  UHA
HERERW SRR 2 5 EHH -
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BEECNERABD 2E > MA
%@Iﬂﬂhﬁ&%& ESE=PN
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

82

(e)

(1)

Goodwill

Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 2(i)(ii)).

Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2(i)(ii)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:
Leasehold improvements 3 to 5 years or over the
remaining terms of leases

(whichever is shorter)
Furniture and fixtures 4 to 5 years

Computer and other equipment 3 to 4 years
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December, 2023
HE_Z_-_F+ZA=+—HLHFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
on development activities is capitalised if the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible and the
Group has sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes the costs
of materials, direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing costs, where applicable.

Capitalised development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see note
2(i)(ii)). Other development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see
note 2(i)(ii)). Expenditure on internally generated goodwill
and brands is recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised from the date when
they are available for use and their estimated useful lives are
as follows:

Mobile games 2 to 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

84

(h)

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that

use.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases

of low-value assets.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Leases (Continued)

(i)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised
is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, and any initial direct
costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-
use assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(i)(ii)).
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of right-of-
use assets using the straight-line method over the lease term
or where it was likely the Group would obtain ownership of
the assets, the life of the assets, as set out in note 2(f).

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from financial assets
The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs") on financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash and cash equivalents,
loans and interest receivables and trade and other
receivables).
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXRTEHBEK(E

86

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive), discounted at original
effective interest rate, where the effect of discounting

is material.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk. In measuring ECLs, the
Group takes into account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or
effort. This includes information about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
which result from all possible default events over
the expected lives of these financial assets. ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the end of the

reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December, 2023
HE_Z_-_F+ZA=+—HLHFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXRTEHBEK(E

(CONTINUED)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (i) CEEEEREEEHEE)
(Continued)

Credit losses from financial assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For all other financial assets measured at amortised
cost, the Group recognises a loss allowance equal to
12-month ECLs unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of the financial assets since
initial recognition, in which case the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. The
12-month ECLs are losses that are expected to result
from possible default events within the 12 months
after the end of the reporting period.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of default occurring
on the financial asset assessed at the end of the
reporting period with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held). The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial asset’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial assets, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is per formed on a
collective basis, the financial assets are grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due
status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at the end of each reporting
period to reflect changes in the financial asset’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss. The Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss for all financial assets with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial assets (Continued)

(i1)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write-off. Subsequent
recoveries of an asset that was previously written off
are recognised as a reversal of impairment in profit or
loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;

- right-of-use assets;

- intangible assets;

- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s

statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December, 2023
HE_Z_-_F+ZA=+—HLHFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)
(i) Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill and
intangible assets that are not yet available for use, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit). A portion of the carrying amount of a
corporate asset is allocated to an individual
cash-generating if the allocation can be done
on a reasonable and consistent basis, or to the
smallest group of cash-generating if otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December, 2023
HE_Z_-_F+ZA=+—HLHFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed. A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in
the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

92

()

(k)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is due.
If revenue has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component are initially measured at their transaction price
and are subsequently stated at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method and including an allowance for
credit losses (see note 2(i)(i)).

Loans and interest receivables

Loans receivable are loans granted to borrowers and
are classified as current assets if the collection of loans
receivable is expected in one year or less. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets. Interest receivables are

interests derived from loans granted to borrowers.

Loans and interest receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for credit losses
(see note 2(i)(i)).
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

(m)

(n)

(o)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL
in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(i)(i).

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue (see note 2(s)). A contract liability
would also be recognised if the Group has an unconditional
right to receive non-refundable consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see note

2(j)).

Other payables

Other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Subsequent to initial recognition, other payables are stated
at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at invoice amounts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense is recognised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 2(u)).
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

94

(p)

(q)

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax.
It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
it relates to a business combination, or items recognised

directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax comprises the estimated tax payable or
receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustments to the tax payable or receivable in respect of

previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes.

The group recognised deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities separately in relation to its lease liabilities and
right-of-use assets.

Wauxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q)

(r)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which they can be used. Future taxable
profits are determined based on the reversal of relevant
taxable temporary differences. If the amount of taxable
temporary differences is insufficient to recognise a deferred
tax asset in full, then future taxable profits, adjusted for
reversals of existing temporary differences, are considered,
based on the business plans for individual subsidiaries in the
group. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting
date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such
reductions are reversed when the probability of future
taxable profits improves.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain
criteria are met.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Generally provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessment of the time value of money and

the risks specific to the liability.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is

remote.

2. ERESHERGE
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

96

(s)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods, the provision of software platform
services and revenue from mobile games and applications in

the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to
be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group's revenue and other income

recognition policies are as follows:

() Provision of software platform includes.

- Sales of licensed software, which are recognised
when the goods are delivered to customers and
titles has been passed which is taken to be the
point in time when the customer has accepted
the goods;

- Software maintenance service income received or
receivable from customers when the maintenance
service contracts are entered into, which is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term
of the maintenance service contract;

- Software subscription income from software
application and website development, which are
recognised at point in time when the relevant

services are rendered; and

Wauxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i)

(1)

(i)

Provision of software platform includes:

(Continued)

- Income from mobile application development,
website conversion, website development
deriving from providing software application
and electronic learning platform to customers,
which is recognised over time when services are
rendered. Revenue is also recognised in profit or
loss in respect of the contract liabilities over the
term of the service contract.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit-impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to
the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of
loss allowance) of the asset (see note 2(i)(i)).

Revenue from mobile games and applications

includes:

i Publishing income from online game platform
owners, which is recognised at point in time
on net basis from platform owners when the
paying players purchase the game credits for the
mobile games after deducting pre-determined
commissions; and

ii. Service income from the provision of mobile
games and applications development and related
services, which are recognised over time when
the services are rendered in accordance with the
contracts.

2. ERESHERGE

(s) YmERAMBA (&)
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

98

(s)

®

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(iv) Government grants
Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there
is reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as income in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are
deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit or
loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.

Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
respective functional currencies of group companies at the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based
on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign
currency differences are generally recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December, 2023
HE_Z_-_F+ZA=+—HLHFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXGHEBEGE
(CONTINUED)
(u) Borrowing costs (u) EFREE

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the WHE - BEREEESEER

acquisition, construction or production of an asset which —EBEFEAFEEIEREZH

necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for RNIEFHERERNEE) MERZ
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of EEXEZERRE EXLLAZE

that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period ERAZ—ZHD HMERH X

in which they are incurred. &S BB o

(v) Discontinued operations (v) BAEILEEEF

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s ERIREXEEBAEBRBEEN

business, the operations and cash flows of which can be AR EEEBRIBEE K20

clearly distinguished from the rest of the group and which: HAEERHEMERFRE D I

- represents a separate major line of business or - RKRRBIFEEXEFHEL
geographical area of operations; EBHME ;

- is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a - ABE—GEE 2 UE
separate major line of business or geographical area of ERITFTEXHRHBRETR
operations; or & ; 3

- is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to - AEEWENBRR °
resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs at the REERNAEXEREDEALR

earlier of disposal or when the operation meets the criteria EHENRER UREEARZE)

to be classified as held for sale. DEADKRIELE LT o

Where an operation is classified as discontinued operation, E—EEBHEREBEABKRLELE

the comparative statement of profit or loss and other EBR FLERNEBEGD R EMUK

comprehensive income is re-presented as if the operation mARWEMIER NEZEHK
had been discontinued from the start of the comparative EERFERBESRIE

year.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(w) Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

100

M

)

has control or joint control of the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

M

)

4

(5)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(w) Related parties (Continued)

(x)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(6) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i).

(7) A person identified in (i) (1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(8) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group's various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of products and services, the type or class
of customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.
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3. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

102

Revenue

Revenue represents the sales value of goods and services
supplied to customers from the provision of software
platform services and revenue generated from mobile games
and applications development. An analysis of the Group’s
revenue within the scope of HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers” disaggregated by major products

or service lines is as follows:

Wm B DE RS
(a) W

BmEZEBRERTTFaRBm
HEFERZERRRBZHE
BEURMBEFRERRERAR
EEZWGE BBMBREER
FREFLFEHOWZIEEANL
SRR mREIBERARBEEE
DM T:

2023 2022
—E-= —E-

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET
From continuing operations REFEREER
Provision of software platform services 12 &k {4 F & IR 75

— Sales of licensed software -HESMEH 5,009 4,421

- Software maintenance services -G EERT 4,959 7,871

— Software subscription -4 ETEE 213 260
— Income from mobile application -FHEERMEE

development, website conversion, 48 U B A S

website development Bk FEE 2 WA 14,312 8,884

24,493 21,436

Mobile games and applications F 1% 155 BN K2 FE PR = -

24,493 21,436
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BE_ZT=—F+-A=+—HILFE

3. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(a) Revenue (Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by the timing of revenue recognition and by geographic
markets is disclosed in notes 3(b)(i) and 3(b)(iv) respectively.

For the IT service contracts in existence as at 31 December,
2023 for which the performance obligations in the contracts
were unsatisfied or partially satisfied as at that date, the
Group will recognise the expected revenue in the future
when the remaining performance obligations under the
contracts are satisfied (see note 2(s)(i)). The Group has
applied the practical expedient in paragraph 121 of HKFRS
15, as the Group recognises revenue from the satisfaction
of performance obligations in the amount to which it has a
right to invoice, which corresponds directly with the value
to the customer of the Group’s performance completed to
date.

(b) Segment reporting

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker,
which are used to make strategic decisions.

3.

W m Be 53 BB % & (18)

(a)

(b)
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3.

104

TECTZF+AZ=+—HILEFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Segment reporting (Continued)

The Group has two (2022: two) reportable segments. The
segments are managed separately as each business offers
different products and services and requires different
business strategies. No operating segments identified by
the chief operating decision-maker have been aggregated
in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group. The
following summary describes the operations in each of the
Group's reportable segments:

Continuing operations

— Software platform . Developing and marketing
of patented server based
technology and the provision
of communications software
platform and software related
services.

— Mobile games and
applications

: Game publishing, development
of mobile games and related
intellectual property and
platform, mobile applications and
data solutions and provision of IT
related solutions.

In previous years, the Group had a reportable segment, as
follows:

Discontinued operation
— Money lending

("Money Lending
Business”)

Provision of money lending
business through Aurum Pacific
Finance Limited (“AP Finance”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company which was a
money lender licensed in Hong
Kong under the Money Lenders
Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) up to 2 June,
2021. AP Finance ceased to be a
subsidiary of the Company on 14
December, 2023, details of which
are set out in note 30(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December, 2023
HE_Z_-_F+ZA=+—HLHFE

3. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3. WERDERE (B)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) #HEEHE (&)

(i) Segment revenues and results (i)

77 BB i R A

For the year ended 31 December, 2023
BE_T-=F+"HA=+—HLEFE

Continuing operations

FBREER
Mobile
Software  games and
platform applications Total
FRER
BHEa KR 5t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FTAET TET
Disaggregated by timing of REGERIAREE S
revenue recognition
Point in time RE— e, 7,517 - 7,517
Over time 0 = R 16,976 - 16,976
Segment revenue from external REIAERZ
customers DU = 24,493 - 24,493
Segment loss D E R (3,952) (1,982) (5,934)
Unallocated income RXREMHA 101
Unallocated administration costs AOETHRER (5,761)
Finance costs B A (890)
Loss before tax from TREREREEK 2
continuing operations bR A5 18 (12,484)
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For the year ended 31 December, 2023
HE_Z_-_F+ZA=+—HLHFE

3. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)
(i) Segment revenues and results (Continued)

W m Be 53 BB % & (18)

(b) 7 EFEE (4)

() 72 BF s R % Aa ()

For the year ended 31 December, 2022

(Restated)
BE_T__F+_A=+—HLFE
(BED)
Continuing operations
HEREER
Mobile
Software ~ games and
platform  applications Total
F B &
nHtETra & FA B 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET TR
Disaggregated by timing of W TR R 2
revenue recognition
Point in time PE— R E 2 12,588 - 12,588
Over time B8 & By 8,848 - 8,848
Segment revenue from external RBINAREEZ
customers 7 BB IR & 21,436 - 21,436
Segment loss D ERE B (18,885) (256) (19,141)
Unallocated income KD E WA 72
Unallocated administration costs KPETHER (2,809)
Finance costs A& A (274)
Loss before tax from REREREEH 2
continuing operations PRI AR 1B (22,152)
106 Wauxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December, 2023
HE_Z_-_F+ZA=+—HLHFE

3. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)
(i) Segment assets and liabilities
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and
liabilities by reportable and operating segments.

W m Be 53 BB % & (18)

(b) 7 E5# & (&)

(i) DEEERER
UTREEBRATZ2RKRE
ENMEDHNEEKRERED
T o

At 31 December, At 31 December,

2023 2022
WZEZ= BB
+=—B=+—H +ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Reportable segment assets REFERSEETEN
from continuing operations AERNBEE
Software platform RHEEE 7,794 10,288
Mobile games and applications 1% 155 BN e B B 5 1,981
Total segment assets DHEELE 7,799 12,269
Assets of money lending BRIEKSEEBRN
discontinued operation BMEEE - 5,115
Unallocated bank balances and cash RO B RITEGFERRE 572 88
Goodwill (Note) & (M 5F) = 1,728
Other unallocated assets Hth kDAL EE 332 370
Consolidated total assets EEEME 8,703 19,570

Note: Goodwill is not included in the measures of segment
assets, but impairment loss on goodwill is included in
the measures of segment results. The effects of this
asymmetrical allocations to reportable segments are shown
in the tables above.

MR E M B HE ) B E A S
B EnERESIER
ADBEESE - LT Y
BOENTENERZT -

BELABERZERERERAA 107
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3. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3. EKkDWBEHS (R)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) #HEEHE (&)
(i)  Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) (i) DEHEEREE(E
At 31 December, At 31 December,
2023 2022
RZEZ= i

+ZB=+—H +ZA=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
(Restated)
(Fe&E75)

Reportable segment liabilities REFESEEREN

from continuing operations AERaHasE
Software platform BHEEL 8,905 8,934
Mobile games and applications 5 1 157 B R FE B 179 166
Total segment liabilities D EEELBEE 9,084 9,100
Liabilities of money lending ERIEKEER

discontinued operation BE&E - 39
Interest-bearing borrowings FEMBR 790 3,808
Other unallocated liabilities HM kDB EE 3,390 1,849
Consolidated total liabilities eaEiBE 13,264 14,796
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HE_Z_-_F+ZA=+—HLHFE

3. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)
(i) Other segment information

3. WmKknEESE (&)

(b) 7 EF#E (#7)
(i) A7 ZBE#

Mobile Consolidated-
Software games and continuing
platform  applications  Unallocated operations
FHREBR et —
BHEFESR F& R AR FEREER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FERT FTHET FHET FERT
For the year ended BEZT-=
31 December, 2023 +-B=+—HLEE
Amounts included in measure of (A IEEHIBEE
segment profit or loss or HENEE:
segment assets:
Depreciation and amortisation e R 921 - 38 959
Research and development expenses  Ff 8 fi &2 11,396 - - 11,396
Interest on: THEEZAE:
- lease liabilities -HEaE 27 - 1 28
- other loan -HtER - - 862 862
Impairment loss recognised in PEERRAERE
respect of goodwill 1,728 - - 1,728
Impairment loss recognised in respect FEIE BB KRR E R
of property, plant and equipment BEBE 272 - - 272
Impairment loss recognised in respect i {F A & E R
of right-of-use assets BEBE 1,278 - - 1,278
Impairment loss recognised on trade 7 /& U &R Bt Kz EL i FE UK
and other receivables B HERE 67 - - 67
Write-off of deposits Mg e - 1,969 - 1,969
Additions to non-current assets FETRENE AL 1,675 - - 1,675

BELABERZERERERAA
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For the year ended 31 December, 2023
HE_Z_-_F+ZA=+—HLHFE

3. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3. WmkyoEHHS (E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) 7 E#HE ()
(iii) Other segment information (Continued) (i) B BEE K (&
Mobile Consolidated-
Software games and continuing
platform applications Unallocated operations
= 3id0d st —
RETE & A Rl HELEED
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
For the year ended HE-ZT-Z
31 December, 2022 +ZA=+—H
(Restated) LLEE(KET)
Amounts included in measure of A HIEHHH
segment profit or loss or BEGTENEE:
segment assets:
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH 900 - 71 971
Research and development expenses  Ff % B 5% 8,585 - - 8,585
Interest on: THIEEZAE
- lease liabilities -HE&8E& 46 - 5 51
— other loan —HMEMR - - 223 223
Impairment loss recognised in PE BRI ERE
respect of goodwill 18,508 - - 18,508
Reversal of allowances in respect of i F& Ut BR 2 K E fth FE W =%
trade and other receivables BREE (67) - - (67)
Additions to non-current assets FEREBEEIEM 191 - 183 374
110 Wauxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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BwE

3.

_E_=F+ZR=+—HLEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

3.

(iv) Geographical information and major customers
The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers and (ii) the Group’s property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible assets
and goodwill (“specified non-current assets”). The
geographical location of the specified non-current
assets is based on the physical location of the assets,

in case of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets, and the location of the operation to which

they are allocated, in case of intangible assets and

W m Be 53 BB % & (18)

(b) 7 EFEE (4)

(iv)

MEEHNRLEIEES

TREIEMOAEERE
SINRERZIE K (i) EE
ZME - BERRE EH
REE -BLEEUKRBE
(MFEEIFRENE E ) FRTE
BZEN BEEFRBEAE
EFEMBIZEEBRAE
Y E - BERRKRHE
URERBEEMS) RE
EFREMMEMETLEER

goodwill. HEMS) S -
Revenue from
external customers Specified
-continuing operations non-current assets
REIAERZ WG
-REREER EEERBEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
= _E-CE —F-= =3B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET FTHET THET
Hong Kong 5k 24,474 21,284 - 2,639
Mainland China ] - 98 - =
Others Hitr 19 54 - -
24,493 21,436 - 2,639

Others mainly cover Macau and Taiwan.

Revenue from major customer arising from provision of

software platform services which accounted for 10%

HtMEZRERFIREGE -

HAREREBUEI0%I MU £
ZIBERBRHEHRHETA

or more of the total revenue of the Group is set out IRFEEEZWZHIOT:
below:
2023 2022
—E-= B &
HK$°000 HK$'000
THER FHER
Customer A EEA 3,274 3,272
BELEEREREBRBRAT m
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BwE

112

_E_=F+ZR=+—HLEE

OTHER INCOME, NET 4. HAtg AF %8R
2023 2022
—E=F -z
HK$°000 HK$'000
T #E T FHET
From continuing operations REFERSEER
Bank interest income RITH B WA = =*
Foreign exchange loss, net FEREEFEE = 76
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net HEMNBAS Z Wi F 58 6 -
Government grants BT 88 B - 1,072
Sundry income MBI A 101 73
107 1,221

* Below HK$1,000.

In 2022, the Group successfully applied for funding support from

the Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund,

set up by the Government from Hong Kong Special Administrative

Region. The purpose of the funding was to provide financial

support to enterprises to retain their employees who would

otherwise be made redundant. Under the terms of the grant, the

Group was required not to make redundancies during the subsidy

period and to spend all the funding on paying wages to the

employees.

Wauxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December, 2023
HE_Z_-_F+ZA=+—HLHFE

5. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION FROM 5. REFEESEEHZHRR
CONTINUING OPERATIONS Al k518
Loss before taxation from continuing operations is arrived at after REFERCEEBE 2RRAIBEEN
charging: Fx
2023 2022
—E=H% —E”C
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
(Restated)
(iR &E5)
(a) Finance costs: (a) FEERE:
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 28 51
Interest on other borrowings HEMEFTFE 862 223
890 274
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ (b) EIRS(BIEES
remuneration (note 8)): il & (Mfd5£8)) :
Salaries, wages and other benefits e IBERHEM
=Rl 17,263 16,011
Contributions to defined contribution @] E AR R 5t &
retirement plan e 710 676
Expenses recognised in respect of MREZ m T2
defined benefit plans: BENMAXZ:
~long service payments (note 24) -RHER%®
(Bt 52 24) 101 751
18,074 17,438
(c) Other items: (0 HhEH:
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 85 6D B <& 420 370
Depreciation of property, plant and ME -BEREZE
equipment e 169 155
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEEEINE 790 816
Expense relating to short-term leases RHREEZEEARX 44 -
Fixed assets written off BMHEEEEE 4 -
Written-off of deposits i tE 2 & 1,969 -
Subcontracting costs included in FTAEER AN
cost of sales 36k A 5,870 440
EELEERERERSRAA 113
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For the year ended 31 December, 2023
HE_Z_-_F+ZA=+—HLHFE

6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS RELATING
TO CONTINUING OPERATIONS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss represents:

B 55 4

BREXBAMZE

BHEmRMER

(a)

RERmEZBIERE

2023 2022
—F-= = —
HK$'000 HK$'000
T #E T FExT
(Restated)
(f=E5)
Deferred tax credit (note 23) I 3E R I3 4K 2 (Bt % 23)
Origination and reversal of temporary & & Jz #5 [0] & B |4 &= 48
differences (100) (105)
Income tax credit TSIk %R (100) (105)
(i) Hong Kong Profits Tax () BEFER
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been HRESBaEMR L2 E
made for 2023 (2022: HK$Nil) as the subsidiaries NER _E_=FwEEM
incorporated in Hong Kong have no assessable profits FERMEF > WAFE L &
for the year. EHEBANEREEBCE
TTE BB e
(i) PRC Enterprise Income Tax (i) HEEEFER

The subsidiaries incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China ("PRC") are subject to the PRC Enterprise
Income Tax rate of 25% (2022: 25%) for the year.

No provision for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax has
been made for 2023 and 2022 as the subsidiaries
incorporated in the PRC have estimated tax losses for

the year.

114 Wauxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December, 2023
HE_Z_-_F+ZA=+—HLHFE

6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
RELATING TO CONTINUING OPERATIONS
(CONTINUED)
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss represents: (Continued)
(ifi) Income tax from other tax jurisdictions

BHEmRAERE)

(a) FWERBEXZHRIEE ()

(i) B 7% 7% a % E 2T

Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations, the

Group is not subject to income tax in Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI").

2

RIBFASMAERAEL > &
EEBAGMMASEE KR
BRELES (REELEE])

FR1SHR o
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
(Restated)
(F&E5))
Loss before taxation from REFELEEXEH
continuing operations R 7R Al 5 18 (12,484) (22,152)
Notional tax credit on loss before ~ B&HBATEMESH
taxation at Hong Kong statutory ZERAIBEZ
tax rate ZEMEBIRR (2,059) (3,655)
Tax effect of non-deductible NI
expenses %R & 1,810 3,856
Tax effect of non-taxable income BEARRBAZ
MBLE (1) (453)
Tax effect of unused tax losses AR ABARE
not recognised BEZRBELE 145 134
Tax effect of temporary BARERERFEEE
differences not recognised MEEE 5 13
Income tax credit FriS iK% (100) (105)
EELEERERERSRAA 115
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7.

116

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

The Group’s loans and interest receivables arose from the Money
Lending Business of providing loans in Hong Kong with the money
lenders licence granted under Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter
163 of the Laws of Hong Kong) held by AP Finance, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company.

Due to keen market competition, and the challenging environment
together with the consideration of the risks associated with the
possible default by the loan borrowers, owing to prolonged impact
of COVID-19 pandemic, the Group did not renew its money lender
licence after the licence expiration on 2 June, 2021 and ceased
the operation of the Money Lending Business with effect from
September 2021.

As the business operation of the Money Lending Business was
considered as a separate major line of business segment of the
Group, it was accounted for as a discontinued operation of the
Group from the year ended 31 December, 2021.

On 14 December, 2023, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to dispose of a wholly-owned subsidiary,
Major Worldwide Holdings Limited (“Major Worldwide”) which
held the entire interest in AP Finance. The disposal was effected
in order to generate cash flows for the expansion of the Group’s
other businesses. The disposal was completed on 14 December,
2023, on which date control of Major Worldwide passed to the
acquirer. Details of the assets and liabilities disposed of, and the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal, are disclosed in note
30(b).

Wauxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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BE_F_=-"F+"_A=+—HLFE

7. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (CONTINUED) 7. BRILEE XK (&)
2023 2022
—EZ= TECCF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
(@) Results of discontinued operation: (a) BRIEKCEXBESR
Revenue W - -
Other income, net HM A $ 48 80 166
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net HEMWE R E
W@ P58 3,785 -
Reversal of impairment loss on R E R F B R &
loans and interest receivables EiE (D 228 -
Other administrative expenses HMTHL (1,044) (90)
Profit from operations &R 3,049 76
Finance costs EE= g7 - -
Profit before taxation B 12 2 & F1 3,049 76
Income tax ST - -
Profit for the year FERF 3,049 76
(b)  Profit for the year from (b) REBKRIEREEK
discontinued operation is WEERH B M
arrived at after charging/ J(BtA) :
(crediting):
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 8Em Bl & - 7
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net HERBRABZ
W F 58 (3,785) =
Reversal of impairment loss on FEU & = & F B R fE
loans and interest receivables R (228) 3
() Cash flows from discontinued (0 XREBRLEEEXR
operation: MRERE:
Net cash used in operating activities, net REFZBFAZ
REFEE (7) (16)
Net cash generated from investing activities BREEEMEZ
REFEE 5,700 -
Net cash used in financing activities MEEHMAZ
REFEE - (70)
5,693 (86)
BELEEREREBRBRAT 17
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—EC=Et-ASt—BLEEE

—_—=< =

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Part 2 of the Companies

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation

and the GEM Listing Rules are as follows:

8. EEM=E

REEBASIEGE383MNIE ~ AT (K
BEEEMNEER)RY 258 & GEM £
MBI BEZEENEN T

Salaries, allowance and Retirement scheme

Directors’ fees benefits in kind Contributions Total

Sk g BRREVAE BARE AR st
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ZEZZH T F ZEIZH T F ZEI=H T ZEIZHE “TTCE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
TERT TET TET TERT TET TERT TERT TERT

Executive directors HITEES
Liu Guanzhou (Chairman) 2| M (X %)

(note 1) (H3E1) 300 - - - - - 300 -
Choi Pun Lap AR - - 240 240 12 12 252 252
Liu Xingmei (note 2) EEEIOEN) 20 - - - - - 20 -
Chung Man Lai (note 3) 8318 (M 5E3) - - 220 240 1 12 231 252

Non-executive director FUTES
Li Hui Ling (note 4) RE ([ 554) - - - - - - - -
Independent non-executive ~ BIUFRTEE
directors
Fu Yan Ming R 120 120 - - - - 120 120
Lam Yuen Man Maria HiEE 120 120 - - - - 120 120
Tai Chin Ho (note 5) BT 85 (o) 60 60 - - - - 60 60
620 300 460 480 23 24 1,103 804

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for

their services in connection with the management of the affairs

of the Company and the Group. The independent non-executive

directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their services

as directors of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December, 2023
HE_Z_-_F+ZA=+—HLHFE

8. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) 8. EEME(B)

Notes:

1. Appointed on 14 April, 2023.

2. Appointed on 30 November, 2023.
3. Resigned on 30 November, 2023.
4. Appointed on 14 February, 2023.

5. Formerly known as Tai Man Tai.

During the years ended 31 December, 2023 and 2022, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors and chief
executive officer as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. In addition, no

directors waived any emoluments during the year (2022: HK$Nil).

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, none of
the five highest emoluments are directors (2022: nil) whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of these five individuals (2022: five) are as

follows:

B 5% -

3 R ZE_=ZF+—HB=+H#E -
4 RIZEZ=_F_F+OBEEMTE -
5. BIfBE X % o

BE_ZE_-"HK-_ZE-__"_F+°A4
=S+ HEFE AEEHMEREE
RTBEZEZNMNE  EFAMALXE
B 300 A 4 £ B 2 09 52 B o (F A B
HWE- LS MEEERFEFAREMS
AE (CE-—F:58BT) o

mREFMAL
RESRBHHMALESD ZEAF
ESFMALILRES (CF22
) MEEZMEFBRHERE o
EE(CBSZF RS EHALZH
SHBBWT:

2023 2022
—EZ= B
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Salaries and other emoluments e RHEHMMNE 3,037 3,164
Retirement scheme contributions BIRETEIH R 105 90
3,142 3,254
BELABERZERERERAA 119
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HE_Z_-_F+ZA=+—HLHFE

9. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9. B =& A T (&)

(CONTINUED)
The emoluments of the five individuals (2022: five) with the AE(CEZZFE AR RemMNZE
highest emoluments are within the following band: AMATZMENFUTEHE:
2023 2022
—F_-= -z
Number of Number of
employees employees
EE A =N
HK$Nil — HK$1,000,000 =8 75 £1,000,00078 7T 5 5
During the year ended 31 December, 2023, no emoluments BHEZZ_=F+"RB=+—HILEE >
were paid by the Group to any of the individuals with highest AEBUERAARBEARS H M A
emoluments of the Company as an inducement to join or upon TEAMEEAMARERMAKX
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. EEEWNRE > NEaRBEmE-
120 Wauxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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HE_Z_-_F+ZA=+—HLHFE

10. LOSS PER SHARE 10. 818
(a) Basic loss per share (a) HRELXEIE
The calculation of basic (loss) or earning per share is based BREABEBEIBANDEUTE
on the following loss or profit attributable to owners of the NEEBEANEBEFEFEBEN T
Company and the weighted average number of ordinary RERNBEFTE @R 2 NEFH
shares in issue during the year. BistHE
2023 2022
—E-= - S
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
(Restated)
(&)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable AT EA AEIEEE
to owners of the Company (B538) /&
— From continuing operations -RERNEREER (11,591) (21,945)
— From discontinued operation -REBERIEREERE 3,049 76
(8,542) (21,869)
2023 2022
—=F== g
Number Number
of shares of shares
& B &5 g 8
‘000 ‘000
T g 58
Weighted average number of ordinary F£RBEXTEZER 2
shares in issue during the year 098 1,272,640 1,272,640
(b) Diluted loss per share (b) ZREEEIE
The diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 December, AR REETRAEBETEZETE B
2023 and 2022 is the same as the basic loss per share as B &B#E_ZT="FKZZTZZ
there were no potential ordinary shares in issue. F+ZA=+—"HLEFEEZER

BEEREASRELGIEAR -

BELABERZERERERAA 121
F #2023



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December, 2023
BE_ZT=—F+-A=+—HILFE

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT N ME-BERKE
Computers
Leasehold Furniture and other
Improvements and fixtures equipment Total
Bk
HEMERE BMKREE Hith& &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET THET
Cost W%
At 1 January, 2022 RZE-__F—F—H 267 292 1,316 1,875
Additions NE - 28 163 191
Written off b - (55) (613) (668)
At 31 December, 2022 RZEZZ&#+”-A=+—H
and 1 January, 2023 RZE-_=F-F—H 267 265 866 1,398
Additions HE - 67 74 141
Written off b - (14) (11) (25)
At 31 December, 2023 RZFZ=F+"A=+—H 267 318 929 1,514
Accumulated depreciation and RAMERAERE
impairment losses
At 1 January, 2022 RZZ2ZZF—-F—H 186 223 1,198 1,607
Charge for the year AEENR 47 23 85 155
Eliminated on written off 1A 31 85 B 45 8 - (55) (613) (668)
At 31 December, 2022 RZEZZF+”-A=+—H
and 1 January, 2023 RZE-Z=F-F—H 233 191 670 1,094
Charge for the year AEENR 34 27 108 169
Eliminated on written off B 9 55 B 49 8 - (13) (8) (21)
Impairment losses REBSE - 113 159 272
At 31 December, 2023 RZE_=ZF+°"A=+—H 267 318 929 1,514
Carrying amount fREfE
At 31 December, 2023 RZBZ=F+”ZR=+—H - - - -
At 31 December, 2022 RIEZZFE+ZB=1+—H 34 74 196 304
122 Wauxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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BwE

11.

_E_=F+ZR=+—HLEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the directors of the Company
have conducted impairment assessment on recoverable amounts of
the Group's property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
which are used in the Group's business for software platform
services. In view of the unfavorable operating results from that
business, the management of the Group estimated the recoverable
amount for the CGU of the Group’ business for software
platform services. The recoverable amount of the CGU has been
determined based on value-in-use calculation. The discount rate
in measuring the amount of value in use was 16%. Based on the
results of the impairment assessment, the management estimated
that the Group’s business for software platform services would
not generate significant amount of positive net cash inflows in
the future and hence the recoverable amounts of the relevant
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets belonging
to the Group's business for software platform services were
insignificant. Accordingly, impairment losses on these assets
used in the Group’s business for software platform services of
HK$272,000 (2022: nil) and HK$1,278,000 (2022: nil) respectively
have been recognised for the year ended 31 December, 2023 to
fully write down the carrying amounts of the property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets respectively.

1.

BELEETRREREERSRAR

ME -~ BB R (E)

RHREHR AR EFTHENEAE
EHUGTaRBEBENIVE BEXR
REREAREEZTWRESEET
BESG TEINZEBRLCEEER
FOAEREEBESAERRGTF
ERBEBERSELAEMUNTKRE &
HoRETELBMNZAIWROESEEDIR
BEHERHEEEEE sEFEREAE
SRHEMIREA16% c ER BET G
R OBEEEMGFRREIEEBERGTFE
ERBEBEIFIEEERELHR SR
AFBE BMEBERAEEHHTERS
(B 2HEBYE BMERXERER
BEEZAIWEIESEETAEK o FILL
AEBERGFARBEFAZSEE
YR (8 5 $8272,0008 T (T E = =
F ) K1,278,00008 T (B - —F:
E)HDAERBE_SE_=ZF+_A81
=+ —HIEEEREE DB E B
ME BEAREBELEREEEEZR
RIS
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BE_ZT=—F+-A=+—HILFE

12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

EBREE

Mobile games
and application

FHESERER
HK$'000
FET
Cost
At 1 January, 2022, 31 December, 2022, W2 _—_F—HB—H -ZZ_-__fF
1 January, 2023 and 31 December, 2023 +-A=+—B -Z2Z=%—FA
—HBHERZIEZ=F+"A=+—H 69,783
Accumulated amortisation Rt R RERSIE
and impairment losses
At 1 January, 2022, 31 December, 2022, W2 __#F#—B—H -Z&2_-_
1 January, 2023 and 31 December, 2023 +—_A=+—H -ZEBEZ-=%F—AH~
—BERZEZ=F+ZH=+—H 69,783
Carrying amount
At 31 December, 2023 =F+”"A=+—H -
At 31 December, 2022 F+-HB=+—H -
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13. GOODWILL 13. B8
Mobile
Software games and
platform applications Total
FRER
BHEFER K e et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FATT TR FETT
Cost B 7
At 1 January, 2022, RZEZ”F—HF—H-
31 December, 2022, “E_F4+ZB=+—H"
1 January, 2023 and “EZ=F-B—HK
31 December, 2023 TR -_F+ZA=1+—H 20,236 89,433 109,669
Accumulated impairment AtRE
At 1 January, 2022 WZE-__F#—HF—H - 89,433 89,433
Impairment loss a8 18,508 - 18,508
At 31 December, 2022 and R_E__F#+-A=+—H
1 January, 2023 rZE-_=%—F—H 18,508 89,433 107,941
Impairment loss W E RS 1,728 - 1,728
At 31 December, 2023 RZIZEZ=F+ZHB=+—H 20,236 89,433 109,669
Carrying amount IREE
At 31 December, 2023 RZEZ=F+ZA=+—H - 3 iy
At 31 December, 2022 AR "F+"B=+—H 1,728 = 1,728
EELEERERERSRAA 125
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13.

126

_E_=F+ZR=+—HLEE

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
("CGUs") identified according to country of operation and
operating segment as follows:

13. B2 (&)

BENEEFAEERBEEMERR
REENBHANZREEEEMIR
TELEEM) FHEOT:

2023 2022
—F_-= -z
HK$°000 HK$'000
T#E T FET
Software platform — Hong Kong RHEFE-—FE
(“Software Platform”) Fr'#HEFE5)) - 1,728
Mobile games and applications — I 1% 155 B R FE PR
Hong Kong ("Mobile Games") —&5B(TFHiEeE) - -
- 1,728

Impairment test for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

The directors have reviewed the carrying amount of goodwill in
accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as follows:

Software platform

The recoverable amount of the CGU as at 31 December, 2023
is determined based on the value-in-use calculation under the
income approach, which includes the discounted cash flows
sourced from the financial budgets approved by the management
covering a five-year period, and the pre-tax discount rate of
approximately 16% (2022: 16.5%) that reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the CGU.

Cash flow projections during the budget period are based on
the expected revenue from existing and potential customers
throughout the budget period. The cash flows beyond that five-
year period have been extrapolated using a steady 3.0% (2022:
3.0%) per annum growth rate. The growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the market.

Wauxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
Annual Report 2023
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FREEZTHEE BEXEERE
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For the year ended 31 December, 2023
BE_ZT=—F+-A=+—HILFE

13.

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Software platform (Continued)

The key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations for the
CGU are as follows:
Budgeted market The values assigned to the assumption
share reflect past experience, except for the
growth factor, which is consistent with

the directors’ estimation of the revenue

from existing and potential customers.
The directors believe that planned revenue
growth per year for the next five years is
reasonably achievable.

Number of service  In order to maintain successive business

contracts operations of the CGU, the directors

believe that there is no particular difficulty
in renewal of the service contracts of the
existing customers in the CGU.

Based on the results for the aforesaid impairment assessments,
due to the continual increase of expected other operating
expenses in the budget period as a result of expected continual
increases in manpower costs due to the manpower shortage in
the relevant labour market experienced in 2023, impairment loss
of HK$1,728,000 was recognised in respect of goodwill as of 31
December, 2023 (2022: HK$18,508,000). As a result, the carrying
amount of the CGU was reduced and became the same as its
recoverable amount of HK$Nil as at 31 December, 2023. (2022:
HK$2,523,000).

Mobile games and applications

The CGU of Mobile games has been fully impaired since the year
ended 31 December, 2020 in view of the deterioration in revenue
level and poor operating results of the CGU in the prior years and
economic environment in Hong Kong.

13. B2 (&)

BfFFE(8)
ReELBUZERBEAEMRZ
TERRMT:

BETENE BRABEZEERBEEER
RBERARRIHN HEEY
REREREEZERZWREG
fEfst—H - EEME KK
hEZEEHIBTRREATE
EERo

AERHEELTEURBLEE
X% BEFRE EBRTE
TEUFRBERZRBEAN
WERRIRE -

BiF LM BEFENER AR T
TZFHEBASSHOTIHBADERER
NI ATERRFEE 18 0 > 78 HA H fh 48
ERTNEEBRMTEEN 522
BT -F+-HA=+—HEMBmERR
A B 181,728,000 5 (T2 = =

18,508,0007% 75) o A It » ;%E%Ei
BUR_ZE-_=F+"B=+—HMEK
R/ R U ElEREER > &
THET(ZTE T "F12,523,00085T) °

FHREBRIER
ERNETERBEFEZIEBRIRET
REELBURaKkTITREEEES
- B8&E_FT_FF+_A=1— E
LFE FRESBNRESELEEMNE
BEORE -
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14.

128

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

14. FHEESE

Leased
properties
HEME
HK$'000
FET
Cost DN
At 1 January, 2022 RIE2Z-_HF—H—H 1,488
Additions NE 183
At 31 December, 2022 and 1 January, 2023 W E2E__F#F+_A=+—HK
—E-=-%#—F—H 1,671
Additions hE 1,534
Derecognition ®IEREST (1,671)
At 31 December, 2023 RZE2Z=%F+"H=+—H 1,534
Accumulated depreciation and impairment loss ZRiIFERBEHEIE
At 1 January, 2022 RZE2Z-_HF—H—H 248
Charge for the year KEE R 816
At 31 December, 2022 and 1 January, 2023 N_E-__F+"A=1+—HK
—E-_=#—HF—H 1,064
Charge for the year K FEHER 790
Eliminated on derecognition RIETE SR (1,598)
Impairment loss B8 1,278
At 31 December, 2023 RZEB_=F+"RB=+—H 1,534
Carrying amount IREE
At 31 December, 2023 N_EZZ=F+Z"H=+—H -
At 31 December, 2022 WZ_E2__F+-A=+—H 607
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BwE

14.

15.

_E_=F+ZR=+—HLEE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 14. EFREEE (&)
The Group has obtained the right to use certain properties as its AEBEEEHEWZESETYE
office premises through tenancy agreements. The leases typically 2ERAEAERAEME - ZEM
run for an initial period of 2 years (2022: 2 years). None of the EBRBURAB-F(CE2E2F. =
leases include variable lease payments. F) o ZEHEUTEAIUEHEENR °
For short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 MIEHEE (RTS8 HEEA126 A F N
months or less) the Group recognises the lease payments as an THWHEE MEs  ~2&EEREBRANZE
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the BEERIBEENRALEMSE -
lease.
Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash flows IIAFRERERERNETEOELE
comprise cash outflow for leases of HK$44,000 and HK$828,000 EmEGZHFINEERESRH 95
(2022: HK$Nil and HK$856,000) in operating and financing 44,0007 7T %828,000 B (Z & -
activities respectively. & 1 T8 7T %856,00078 7T) ©
Details of the maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in HEEBZHRDFIBEENMKEE
note 22. 22 °
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15. F& Uk BR 7k Ko HL fth F& Uk
2023 2022
—F- = g
HK$°000 HK$'000
T #E T T & T
Gross amount of trade receivables JE s AR TR 4B 38 6,535 5,757
Less: loss allowance BB ERE (3,958) (3.891)
2,577 1,866
Deposits and other receivables Y& & & H B R 545 2, 72571
Prepayments FEfT 2,383 3,455
5,505 7,578
All of the Group's trade and other receivables, apart from certain Fx & %8 4222,0008 T (ZZE = =
deposits and prepayments of HK$222,000 (2022: HK$18,000), are 18,0008 ) 2 & THEE KB IN >
expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses within one NEBFARWEREDR R EMEWKRTE
year. Ha R —FEAEsmEEAMAx -
EELEERERERSRAA 129
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15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

A deposit was paid in 2020 to a supplier for development of
mobile games and applications amounting to approximately
HK$1,969,000 for use in the Group’'s mobile games and
application services. The management of the Company had issued
demand notes and recovery procedures against the supplier but
failed to recover the deposit and determined the amount could
not be recovered. Accordingly, the directors of the Company have
written off the amount of HK$1,969,000 (2022: nil) in the year
ended 31 December, 2023.

The prepayments include HK$1,085,000 (2022: HK$2,104,000) for
hardware procurement, licenses and testing fees.

Ageing analysis
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance,

is as follows:

15.

P& Uk B =k Rz EL fth FE Uk =K
(#8)

RSN ESEFRERRERM
) A FE 7 2 AT Y 3% & 49 41,969,00078
T TRARANEBRNFHERXER
k% A AT EEBERAMHERE A
BERBAMETETWREIRZR > BXE
WEZS TR AZEBEAITUWE o E
b REEZZ_=F+"8B=+—
HEEEXAABEEEMHEZEE
1,969,000/ L (ZEZ ZF 1 ) ©

FE{TFE$E1,085,0008 T (ZE__4
2,104,00078 1) BUTE 14 £ B8 ~ 7 AJ 5%
BH & o

#R 72 57 ¥
BERSHEF BRERRBER
BRNBEEEEZREDNOT:

2023 2022
—EZ=F ==

HK$'000 HK$'000

TF#E T TET

Within 1 month DR —1ME A 987 1,136

More than 1 but less than 3 months HBm—EAE LK =1EA 988 660

More than 3 but less than 6 months BHE=E/aE K ER 331 -
More than 6 but less than 12 months BEAEAE DR

+Z@A 271 70

More than 12 months Bl —Ea - -

2,577 1,866

Further details on the Group's credit policy and credit risk arising
from trade receivables are set out in note 27(a).
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16. LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

The Group’s loans and interest receivables as at 31 December,

2022 arose from the Money Lending Business which has been

classified as discontinued operation in September 2021 as a result

of the Group's cessation of the operation. Further details on the

discontinued operation are set out in note 7.

During the year ended 31 December, 2023, the balances were

derecognised upon the completion of disposal of subsidiaries

as set out in note 30(b). Under the terms set out in the disposal

agreement, a loan receivable of principal amount of HK$3,841,000

was assigned from AP Finance to the Group upon the completion

of the disposal.

16. BEIRER KA B

A ZE__HF+ZR=+—B  F&H
ZEBWERRMNEELEEREER

ZEBER_Z—FNLREDES
ERIEEEXEET  REASETEBRRIL
HEB ARERLEEEBENES

SIBEAMIEET o

HLUNMY 30T E  REBE S - =
FHZA=+—HIEFE » HHNE
MHEWNBRAE BAIEESR - RiRH
EmEMmEGER REMBEREES
EHERERAAEBRBEE—SASES
3,841,000 B T EWE K ©

2023 2022
—EZZH —E°C
Loan Interest Loan Interest

Portion Portion Total Portion Portion Total
EREa HMEHA @t gmEa FEEH st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHL FH TER TER FER
Loans secured by mortgage RBIKAEN - - - 5,000 298 5,298
Personal guaranteed loans BAERER - - - 47,300 4,589 51,889
Unsecured loans ERFER 3,841 - 3,841 42,018 5,343 47,361
3,841 - 3,841 94,318 10,230 104,548
Less: loss allowance W BEEEG (3,841) - (3,841) (89,410) (10,230) (99,640)
= - - 4,908 = 4,908

Loans receivable were interest free (2022:

10.0% to 58.9% per

annum) and repayable on maturity dates under the terms in

contractual agreements or on demand in writing by the Group.

}EuygT)\;%;rD-l—/u\(—v——ﬂi -EE%'J
K 210.0% £58.9%) » I 2 £ & R &
HEREBEEEBEEATZEETDERX

BE -
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HE_Z_-_F+ZA=+—HLHFE

16. LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 16. BN E M Kk F 2 (4)
(CONTINUED)
Ageing analysis of the carrying amount, prepared based on RBECEINFEHRERENIEEERRK D
contractual due date, is as follows: M
2023 2022
ZECZ=F B F
Loan Interest Loan Interest
Portion Portion Total Portion Portion Total
R HEHS @t EnEa FEBD 1t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT TERT FET FET FTERT
Current (not past due) R (xEH) - - - - - -
Less than 3 months past due BHOR=E = = = - - -
3 to 6 months past due BE=FEXE = - - - - -
Over 6 months past due AHNERN - - - 4,908 - 4,908
= = = 4,908 - 4,908
The credit quality of loans and interest receivables that are neither AR BEZERRERRFMNEZE
past due nor impaired was assessed by reference to historical EEZZ2TEHMRZRENERZBHE
information about counterparties’ default rates. BREsTM o
Further details on the Group's credit policy are set out in note BHAEEGEEREXENELHBIR
27(a). B 5£27(a) o
17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 17. RERREEEMREM

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at

bank and on hand

As at 31 December, 2023, the cash and cash equivalents

of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“"RMB"”) amounted
to HK$1,000 (2022: HK$52,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland

China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and

Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign

Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange

RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to

conduct foreign exchange business.
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For the year ended 31 December, 2023
HE_Z_-_F+ZA=+—HLHFE

17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

17. REkBEEFEY R HEM
REREEH (&)

(b)

EREZHELZREBHIK

TREIAEBMEEREZSZ
BEZE (BEREAFRSET)
HFBE-BRMEETHELEZERES
HESAENRKETREFE
FEERFRGRERNEXRTOER
MEIZPFBZREREZEE -

Interest-
bearing Lease
borrowings liabilities
LIRSEiEEEN HE&E
HK$'000 HK$'000 Total
TR TR 4t
(note 20) (note 22) HK$'000
(Ff 5 20) (M 5£22) FET
At 1 January, 2022 WZE-__%—HF—H 908 1,244 2,152
Changes from financing MEEHREREEH:
cash flows:
Capital element of lease rentals paid BRNHEEREZ XS H S - (805) (805)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BN HEEREZFE B2 - (51) (51)
Interest paid BENFE (223) = (223)
New loans from a third party REBE=ZFZHER 2,900 - 2,900
2,677 (856) 1,821
Other changes: Hihg s :
Increase in lease liabilities from SUMBEEELEZ
entering into new leases HEa/EM - 183 183
Interest expenses (note 5(a)) BB (MY 5E5(a)) 223 51 274
223 234 457
At 31 December, 2022 WZEZ--%+-H8
=+—H 3,808 622 4,430
EELEERERERSRAA 133
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17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 17. RERFEEEMRHEM
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION HEREEMN(B)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b)) EREZEELEZEEBHEK
financing activities (Continued) (4
Interest- Amount
bearing duetoa Lease
borrowings director liabilities
& i — fiL
M EfE R EESPEN RE&HE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 Total
FHT FHT FHT st
(note 20) (note 21) (note 22) HK$'000
(it 5%20) (MisE21) (Hi5E22) TET
At 1 January, 2023 KZEZ=%—F—H 3,808 - 622 4,430

Changes from financing cash flows: REEHRETELE .

Capital element of lease rentals paid ~ BN HEREZE&HH - = (800) (800)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ~ EFAERAEZHEHD - - (28) (28)
Interest paid ENFHE (862) - - (862)
New loans from a third party KEE=HAZHER 7,356 = - 7,356
Repayment of other loans BEHEMER (10,374) - - (10,374)
Advance from a director EES O - 2,852 - 2,852
(3,880) 2,852 (828) (1,856)
Other changes: Hitt &g
Increase in lease liabilities from entering ] B EEELZ
into new leases HESEEM - - 1,534 1,534
Decrease in lease liabilities from early ~ RAEAKEBEEEZ
termination of lease HEABRD - - (73) (73)
Interest expenses (note 5(a)) IS B9 (B 3%5(a)) 862 - 28 890
862 - 1,489 2,351
At 31 December, 2023 R-E-=%+=H
=+—H 790 2,852 1,283 4,925
134 Wauxi Life International Holdings Group Limited

Annual Report 2023



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A H

1707 O = |

R %5 ¥ 2% BfY X

For the year ended 31 December, 2023
BE_ZT=—F+-A=+—HILFE

18.

19.

OTHER PAYABLES

H fth & {3 =X

2023 2022
—F_-= -
HK$°000 HK$'000
T#&ET TET
Other payables HihEAT = 846 2,154
All other payables are expected to be settled within one year or FMEHMEMNRBHEER —FREE

repayable on demand.

WIWEREE -

CONTRACT LIABILITIES 19. 8 &E
These represent receipt in advance of performance under IT ZESHEARRRITUZERB TR
service contracts with customers. BEMNBETEANTRWRMRIE -
When the Group receives a deposit before the service commences, MAEERNRFZHGAIWNEZE A
this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a contract MEZEEERaNHERELEANEE
until the revenue recognised on the project exceeds the amount of EEXEEHMEERI N ZBBEEEEE
the deposits. The Group typically receives a certain deposit, which Ak RERE— ﬂﬁ WEE T2
is negotiated on case by case basis with customers, on acceptance ERETEMNEARERBESOE
of IT service contracts. BREBEENBEREERHE o
2023 2022
—EZ= [
HK$'000 HK$ 000
T #E T FE T
At 1 January —H—H 7,361 4,652
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result ~ FAREEARN D 2 W @
of recognising revenue during the year FARFENZzEHNER
that was included in the contract FREHaBERD
liabilities at the beginning of the year (6,138) (2,114)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result HREARERB SN
of billing in advance of performance BMNEAOEWMRIESS
under IT service contracts HBHRBEIEM 14,428 24,144
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result ~ HREERNETH L
of recognising revenue in respect of the BEEERAREENSH
new contract liabilities entitled I=REP:E
during the year (9,010) (19,321)
At 31 December n+—_A=+—H 6,641 7,361

The amount of receipt in advance of performance expected to
be recognised as revenue after more than one year is HK$65,000

(2022: HK$163,000).

BELEETRREREERSRAR

FEHEBERE—FEBRIARZZELY
78 U FIE & %8 465,0008 T (CZ

£ :163,0003 7) ©
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20. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 20. M 2 &R
The interest-bearing borrowings are repayable within one year or MEERENR —FNEBEHZERE
on demand (including those with repayable on demand clause). HEOEXAREREERRZMBEBR)
2023 2022
—E-=HF =
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#E T TET
Loan from a third party RE—BE=—AZEMR 790 3,808
The maturity of interest-bearing borrowings, based on the WMEERERERDEMATATER
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements, is as HEAZHABRM T
follows:
2023 2022
—EZ=HF .
HK$°000 HK$'000
T #E T FET
Within 1 year —F R 790 3,808
After 1 year but within 2 years —FEEMERN - -
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBERLFRN = -
More than 5 years BEEM E - -
790 3,808
Details on the interest rate profile of the Group are set out in note KEBZAMEERLFBH LM
27(c). 27(c) °
The interest-bearing borrowings at 31 December, 2023 were RIEZ_=F+"A=+—HZHWE®E
unsecured. R AR o
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21. AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 21. B —UEETERR

2023 2022
—E-=HF =B
HK$°000 HK$'000
T #E T FHET
Amount due to a director B — I EEFRR 2,852 -

BN-—UEFTETAFTELERF
29.07% PR BY AR BR) 1 2R Ak 2 SR HE AR
FEHEEEBREERBARE -

The amount due to a director, who is also a shareholder with
29.07% shareholding interest in the Company, is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and without fixed repayment terms.

22. LEASE LIABILITIES 22. HEEE
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of TRETAEEHEGRZHGEN
the Group's lease liabilities: HAIR :
2023 2022
—F_-= -z

HK$°000 HK$'000

T % T TE T

Within 1 year —F RN 757 603

After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMERN 526 19

1,283 622
EELEERERERSRAA 137
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23. DEFERRED TAXATION
The component of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements
during the year are as follows:

23. ﬂEL#ﬁIE
REEE > WiEaWBRIRERDN
BEERB(EE) BAEHEHRTD R E
U

Deferred tax arising from: EEREBEELS:
Right-of-use
assets Lease liabilities Total
ERAEEE HEaE Eat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(&) (&)
At 1 January, 2022 A_E_"F—HF—H 205 - 205
Credited to profit or loss StAEH (105) - (105)
At 31 December, 2022 and RIZZZF+ZA=+—HEK
1 January, 2023 —_E"=-%#—HF—H 100 - 100
Credited to profit or loss StAEHE (100) - (100)
At 31 December, 2023 A —_E_=F+"_HA=+—H - - -
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BwE

23.

24,

_E_=F+ZR=+—HLEE

DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED) 23. IR R IE (48)
Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial position: RERMBRRIRER:
2023 2022
—E-Z=F B —
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFHE T FET
(Restated)
(&)
Deferred tax assets FEIERIBEE - -
Deferred tax liabilities FEIERIEBEE - 100
- 100
As at 31 December, 2023 the Group has cumulative tax losses N B ZFE+_HA=+—H ' FKEH
of approximately HK$63,725,000 (2022: HK$79,129,000). The HRTRNIBEIB4 463,725,000/ 7T (=
Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in relation to these T T4 179,129,000 7T) © HIA KK
unutilised tax losses and deductible temporary differences in Nl P ol M N S £ i -
respect of lease liabilities and deferred benefit plan obligations EXAPARNEEEAREREEEER
amounting to HK$2,135,000 (2022: HK$1,373,000) due to BEESmst 8 ZHFNIENE K EE
the unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses of 2,135,000 7t (Z & = — £ 11,373,000
HK$60,757,000 (2022: HK$76,161,000) have no expiry date under BIL)ERELERIBEEE - REBARIR
the current tax legislation. Other temporary differences are not 18 7% ) » 18 5 1860,757,00078 7T (=
material. T T4 176,161,00078 7T) Mt & i B
B - HMEREERLEAERX
DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN OBLIGATIONS 24, RERZ met S TR

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the
“"MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
scheme administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately, and there
is no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group to
reduce the existing level of contribution.

BELEETRREREERSRAR

NEBERBETBEG F485=AH A
Bt KpAZS A EBIRGAEE
Z2RIEREZZEREEK L —H®R G
MABEETE((RESE) - BES
FEA—EHBIZEAETEZ T
HEBAKEE - RIFRBEE2 > &
FREREEZBEZREERBBAZ5%
BEEHF EeaSAERAKAZ
30,0008 c o stEIHRMENFH B > I
mAEETARBRERA®RKEDN
B2 UM R ©
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24,
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DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN OBLIGATIONS
(CONTINUED)

Hong Kong employees that have been employed continuously
for at least five years are entitled to long service payments in
accordance with the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance under
certain circumstances. These circumstances include where an
employee is dismissed for reasons other than serious misconduct
or redundancy, that employee resigns at the age of 65 or above,
or the employment contract is of fixed term and expires without
renewal. The amount of LSP payable is determined with reference
to the employee’s final salary (capped at HK$22,500) and the
years of service, reduced by the amount of any accrued benefits
derived from the group’s contributions to MPF scheme, with an
overall cap of HK$390,000 per employee. Currently, the Group
does not have any separate funding arrangement in place to meet
its LSP obligation.

In June 2022,
Ordinance, which will eventually abolish the statutory right of an

the Government gazetted the Amendment

employer to reduce its LSP payable to a Hong Kong employee by
drawing on its mandatory contributions to the MPF scheme. The
Government has subsequently announced that the Amendment
Ordinance will come into effect from 1 May, 2025. Separately, the
Government is also expected to introduce a subsidy scheme to
assist employers after the abolition. Among other things, once the
abolition of the offsetting mechanism takes effect, an employer
can no longer use any of the accrued benefits derived from its
mandatory MPF contributions (irrespective of the contributions
made before, on or after the Transition Date) to reduce the LSP
in respect of an employee’s service from the Transition Date.
However, where an employee’s employment commenced before
the Transition Date, the employer can continue to use the above
accrued benefits to reduce the LSP in respect of the employee’s
service up to that date; in addition, the LSP in respect of the
service before the Transition Date will be calculated based on the
employee’s monthly salary immediately before the Transition Date
and the years of service up to that date. The group has accounted
for the offsetting mechanism and its abolition as disclosed in note
2(c).
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2wt 8 & (88)
REFTERT EEZREVEEWN
EEREERBESERBHRABGRER
EHRBEs ZEBEROERERE
ERNETASNEE EEN6SEIU
TN FERFER EEBESNBEETH
PR EIHEA 72 W0 & 48 40 2 9h B9 IR (A 4 R
B-ENRBERBZENEEL2EE
B &K% (LR A22,500%8 ) & R
BEH REBaBEE BB
EENTRRERZSEET 88
B E P4 FIRA390,000/8 7T » AT »
AEBUTESEEMERE &L H MU
BTHEHRBARBERY o

RIEZZFXB BMEEEHNE
EETIED > ZRP R REREEN
EEREN BEBREIRHARBE TS
BEMHR ROEBENERBEEN
RSB E - WFBREMETIFRG
BRZIZZRFRRA—BEW - Ao
T8 HA BT 75 % B BE B 12 HE W 4 AL 5t &)
UtBhfRE - Hh > —BERIEEHE
BEH BEEFATBERAEREER
FIMEERTHNBEBR A~ 2R
RZBREHNERFEENRE D
RILAEEB B FE%E%%#%%
WEMRZS - AM > NWEENBE

AR CRE BREUMEDR LT
SR WERNZEEREZAMR

RERBHWEBARB S L RIBE
BEAMREERENEHERE SRR
BERERENEZBEHBAZ A RE
EZHIECZREFRFTE - SOM &
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HE_Z_-_F+ZA=+—HLHFE

24. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN OBLIGATIONS

(CONTINUED)

The movements in the present value of unfunded obligations are

as follows:

24, BRES @ E

=

&% (&)

AERMEHHREESHUNT:

2023 2022
—E° = =

HK$°000 HK$'000

T#E T FET

(Restated)

(fe&E 7))

At 1 January ®1818 751 -

Expenses recognised in profit or loss: REmPREINESE:

Current service cost EHRB A 78 37

Interest cost A B AL 7 23 20

Past service cost B ERFE A - 694

101 751

At 31 December 128318 852 751
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation RIZEZ=F+ZA=1T—H ' RE=

at 31 December, 2023 is 10.2 years (2022: 9.2 years).

I & 5 2 N T F B B10.2F (=

T 92M) o
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24. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN OBLIGATIONS 2. [ER = BIHRF (E)
(CONTINUED)
The above expenses are recognised in the following line items in MEHEZRGEEEGRNUATEER
the consolidated statement of profit or loss: =
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MBEENDHA !
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&T FET
(Restated)
(F&E5)
Cost of sales i & AY 2 10 59
Administrative expenses THER X 15 164
Research and development expenses MR 66 456
Selling and distribution costs i & K 7 #8 B A 10 72
101 751
Significant actuarial assumptions (expressed as weighted averages) EEBERTUNEFEHERT) R
and sensitivity analysis are as follows: BRESWOT:
2023 2022
—F== BT F
Discount rate A IR = 3% 3%
Future salary increases ARIBEE 3% 3%
Expected investment return on offsettable Tk BBE S EE M F
MPF accrued benefits T8 HA 4% & [0 3R 1% 1%
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24. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN OBLIGATIONS 2. RERmetBIRF (E)
(CONTINUED)
The below analysis shows how the defined benefit obligation T DR BAR E % i & 7% U A B
would have increased/decreased as a result of 2% change in the REABHEBRRD2% SN~
significant actuarial assumptions: VA

Increase in 2%

Decrease in 2%

18 12% H2%
2023 2022 2023 2022
ZEI=F “ECCF ZZZ= ZRICE
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT B AT BT
Discount rate ELETES (26) (254) 36 423
Future salary increases ARIEBHE 5 54 (6) (72)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption that
changes in actuarial assumptions are not correlated and therefore
it does not take into account the correlations between the

actuarial assumptions.

The employees of a subsidiary in the PRC are members of the
state-sponsored retirement benefit scheme organised by the
relevant local government authority in the PRC. The subsidiary is
required to contribute, based on a certain percentage of the basic
salary of its employees, to the retirement benefit scheme and has
no further obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post-
retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions. The state-
sponsored retirement benefit scheme represents for the entire
pension obligations payable to retired employees. Contributions
to the plan vest immediately, there is no forfeited contributions
that may be used by the Group to reduce the existing level of

contribution.

FHRGEREITERERNBEERRED
EAER RLETEFEEBEERR
Z BBIHR R -

—ETEWNBAEZEEDTERERE
WMERFERBEEBARE R KE
FstBIzMEBE - ZWBABBRERE
BEAHFEETELLBARAKRE
FetBlER BREEHRARN > BAK
EEHRERERESNRIE KRG
E—FSEFE - BERENBRAKEBHE
HEBRARBESNZE2BERAEE
EoBERNEEB AEETE
BHED BN ERBEEERES MR
KT o
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25.

144

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

On 8 May, 2013, the Company passed an ordinary resolution
at the annual general meeting regarding the termination of the
old share option scheme which was adopted on 25 November,
2003 (the “Old Share Option Scheme”) and adopted a new share
option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme"”) whereby the
board of directors of the Company may, at its discretion, grant
share options to the eligible participants including any employees,
directors, suppliers, consultants, agents and advisers or any person
in the sole discretion of the board of directors for the primary
purpose to recognise and motivate their contributions to the
Group.

On 29 April, 2016, the Company passed an ordinary resolution
at the extraordinary general meeting to amend the definition of
“Eligible Participant” of the New Share Option Scheme and the
definition of “Invested Entity” be added to the New Share Option

Scheme (“Amendments to the New Share Option Scheme”).

Unless it is approved by shareholders in a general meeting of
the Company, the maximum number of shares available for
subscription under Amendments to the New Share Option Scheme
or any other option scheme adopted by the Company is subject
to:

i The maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of all options granted under
Amendments to the New Share Option Scheme or any other
share option scheme adopted by the Company must not
exceed 30% of its issued share capital from time to time;
and

ii.  The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under Amendments
to the New Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the shares in issue at the date of the approval of
Amendments to the New Share Option Scheme/at the date
of passing the relevant resolution in general meeting.
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25.
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EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

The maximum number of shares issuable under the options to
each eligible participant in any 12-month period is limited to 1%
of the shares in issue unless it is approved by shareholders in
general meeting of the Company.

Any grant of options under Amendments to the New Share Option
Scheme to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
of the Company, or any of their respective associates must be
approved by independent non-executive directors (excluding any
independent non-executive director who is the proposed grantee
of the options).

Any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of
their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares in issue
and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
shares at the date of each grant) in excess of HK$5 million, in any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in general
meeting of the Company.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28
days from the date of the offer of the option. The consideration
for a grant of options by the Company is HK$1.00. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determined by the board of
directors.

The exercise price of the share options is determined by the board
of directors providing that the price shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the shares on GEM as stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets on the date of the
offer, which must be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price
of the shares on GEM as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.

25. LR ERZ KRB 5 (IR)

REG+ZEBHE > REBRES
MESGERZEEETZEaRMND
HERBEETRMOZ1% > BFRIERER
BIREAE LEREHERIER G

REFBEREABEIRNAATES
ETBABHATERRARERE
ZHMBARLBERE LBALBIIF
HETEFFEREASABRIERSE
ERAZBIUFRTES) #E -

REAM+ZEBHEM > BAABEER
RN BUFRTEERARESEZMAE
MBEEABHEZEAERE > N8B
BETRMN0I%LBERERLDH
Z2EBRMA T ESE)E 5000000
B o HWARKTADRERASLER
AL o

BREZHEZINRHBRER S
HEIIEEI28H MM o B AR F &
HEEREZRER1.008T - HHER
RZTEHBRESTEERE °

BRETEENHEFIEE ) KT
EEASERATREE  VEZRH
HREWEARXSH)RERXHMEAR
BERRMBRMNGEMZIRTHE ; (i) &
ERHEBBMEIEXZ BB SEH
WERFAHBRKRONRGEMZFIIRHE ;
R MHEE °
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25. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 5. URAFAEF Z2RKRDR 5 (8)
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

The total number of share options that could be granted was
limited to 127,264,000 shares at par value of HK$0.04 each,

AR EERMEES LR A
127,264,0008% & f% @ 180.048 7t 2 K&

representing approximately 10% of the total issued shares of the 7 TﬁE\_v —NFERBZ —f—ﬁEIHy%

Company on the date of passing the resolution to refresh the New BFEAXSR
Share Option Scheme limit at the annual general meeting on 25

June, 2018.

No share option under the Old Share Option Scheme or
Amendments to the New Share Option Scheme was granted or
outstanding during the years ended 31 December, 2023 and 2022.

10% o

TREZERRE -

BB AERES S Z
ERE EIZIK/\TZEﬁﬁHyT’\%EEE%‘\J

BE_Z_=ZFKZT"_F+ZA
St HEFERILERBEREK#E
StEIS T RS B BT RE S H K

26. CAPITAL AND RESERVES 26. EXRK#E
(a) Share capital (a) Bz
Authorised and issued share capital FEEREEFITRAK
Number
of shares Amount
AV E¢=! =%
‘000 HK$'000
T FET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares ZiER
At 31 December, 2023 and 2022 WN_E_=ZFr_F__
of HK$0.04 each +-A=+—HEREE
0.0478 7t 3,000,000 120,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRHRE:
Ordinary shares %LHQ
At 31 December, 2023 and 2022 AR ERIEC
of HK$0.04 each +-_RB=+—H&EKEE
0.0478 75 1,272,640 50,906
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26. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 26. EAR KL #E (8)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (b) HEZMEREZE

(i)  Share premium (i) KH@E
Under the Companies Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of 1961, as RIERESH B X F25
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, the RAEE (N AN—FF3ME
funds in the share premium account of the Company Bl BERERIER) AR
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company BIRMDaEERZEENDIK
provided that immediately following the date on FTARREIKE > ERBEESR
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the KEREBHE > AREH
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as REBREXHEBEFRIEE
they fall due in the ordinary course of business. BB

(i) Capital reserve (i) BXGEE
The capital reserve represents capital contribution from BEAREREEARIERERE
shareholders in relation to interest-free loans granted ERBEHANKRIE - &8
by the shareholders. The amounts are estimated by MEFAEBREERZE
discounting the nominal value of their non-interest- ERBELUEMTHZIRT
bearing loans to the Group at current market interest MHBAEYEREE - EEE
rate for similar financial instruments. An early BEREEMERLEREE
repayment of interest-free loans represents a reduction B MmEA#EIN A LA
in contribution from shareholders and reduces capital B o

reserve accordingly.

(iii) Capital surplus (i) B KREER
Capital surplus comprises the unconditional waiver of BEABRKRBEEERARARKER
loans and advances by shareholders of the Company AEBRMENSB QR Z &K
and the Group's former subsidiary. HEHRERMEBER

(iv) Exchange reserve (iv) EERF#E
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange EREECFERAERINZE
differences arising from the translation of the financial B mRmESE Z B
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt EEZE - LREEDHREMNE
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out 20T 2 Bt R BRIE ©
in note 2(t).
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26.

148

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(v)  Other reserve

The other reserve represents the excess of cash
consideration paid for acquisition of additional
interests in non-wholly owned subsidiaries over the
decrease in the carrying amount of the non-controlling
interests of HK$102,000 (2022: HK$102,000) in prior

years.

(c) Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going

concern,

shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk

and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by
a sound capital position, and makes adjustments as to the

capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of an
adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted
net debt is defined as all liabilities excluding deferred tax,

less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises

all components of equity.
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26. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

26. B R f# R (&)

(c) Capital management (Continued) (c) BEXEEE)
The adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at the end of reporting RREARNEABREHE ZHRY
period was as follows: BARLEENT:
2023 2022
—EZ=HF -
HK$°000 HK$'000
T % T FET
Net debt BEHFEH 10,066 10,251
Capital = (4,561) 4,774
Debt to capital ratio BHERLLE (2.21) 2.15
The directors of the Company review the capital structure KANBIEEFEERAERGEHE
on an ongoing basis. As part of this review, the directors EARLBERZED  EFERE
consider the cost of debt and cost of capital. Based on the BREARE AEBRKEBEE
recommendation of the directors, the Group will balance its EZHBRREBZNORE N &
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, THRURETHEBETHAE
new share issues as well as the issue of new debts. BERERE o
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is subject to KABREAAKBRABEAS
externally imposed capital requirements. SNFBE N 2 B A 3R E FTBR Y o
(d) Distributability of reserves (d) 7 kf#E
At 31 December, 2023, the aggregate amounts of reserves W2 =-—F+ZB=+—H"
available for distribution to owners of the Company was ARIIKFARRBEEBAZRE
HK$Nil (2022: HKS$Nil). BEREET(CEBE_F:248
7T) ©
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27.

150

_E_=F+ZR=+—HLEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group's
exposure to these risks and the financial risk management policies
and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade and other receivables and loans and interest
receivables. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from cash and cash equivalents is limited because the
counterparties are banks for which the Group considers to
have low credit risk.

The Group uses debtors’ aging to assess the impairment
for its customers in relation to its operation because these
customers consist of a large number of customers with
common risk characteristics that are representative of the
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance
with the contractual terms. The impairment assessment is
based on the Group's assessment of historical credit loss
experience of the existing debtors and all available forward-
looking information, including but not limited to the
expected economic conditions. At the end of the reporting
period, the Group has a concentration of credit risk as 9%
(2022: 21%) and 13% (2022: 60%) of total trade receivables
were due from the largest customer and five largest
customers respectively.

Wauxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December, 2023
HE_Z_-_F+ZA=+—HLHFE

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27. M EEREEREMIA

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ANFE(EE)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EEREEE)
The Group used estimated loss rates based on aging XEBERAEBFRERARS
for classes with different credit risk characteristics and A OB 58 B 2 AR #e F B 5t
exposures, and the estimated loss rates are estimated based BEEE > G BBEEDERER
on historical observed default rates over the expected A TEERPEELTBRERELY
life of the debtors. The grouping is reqularly reviewed by Xz -EEETHERD A
management to ensure relevant information about specific DURE R B A4S E FE UL BR 2R AV 48 B
debtors is updated. Trade receivables are due within 30 days BERBRT - BUWEANEERE
from the billing date. HAFEFT30H A EIHR ©
(i)  Trade receivables () FEWAR L
The Group measures loss allowances for trade FEBRBENEREE
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which EETE2BEREES
is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group's BrzcBtERRERZ
historical credit loss experience does not indicate BIEEE BN EAEE S
significantly different loss patterns for different A EEEBELRIELTRE
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past ERDHBBREARBEER
due status is not further distinguished between the ZEH > REBEBHARESEZ
Group's different customer bases. EBEBEIENEAEERRF

ERBEZBE—FED

BELABERZERERERAA 151
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For the year ended 31 December, 2023
HE_Z_-_F+ZA=+—HLHFE

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27. M EEREEREMIA

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NEE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EERE(E)

(i) Trade receivables (Continued) () EWERN ()

TRIEHABAAEEE
WAk ™ & 4 & ZE Fr [ B

The following table provides information about the
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade

receivables: Z2EERBMKREHREERS
BZER:
2023
ZEC=
Expected Gross Net
average carrying Loss carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
BT
BRX REAE BRER REFE
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
Current (not past due) wE (ka8 0.71% 487 (@) 483
Less than 1 month past due AL R—1EA 0.77% 508 (@) 504
10 3 months past due AR-Z=@A 0.89% 996 9) 987
3 10 6 months past due BAHZERER 1.02% 335 3) 332
6 to 12 months past due BHAET_ER 1.15% 274 (3) 271
More than 12 months BATZERMNE 100% 3,935 (3,935) -
6,535 (3,958) 2,571
2022
“E-CE
Expected Gross
average carrying Loss Net carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
BT
BE% RESE BEEE REZE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER
Current (not past due) ik e S ki) 0.71% 643 o 639
Less than 1 month past due ki) e ] 0.77% 501 (4) 497
1 to 3 months past due BB-E=(EA 9.83%-0.89% 666 (6) 660
3 t0 6 months past due WB=E~EA 0.95%-1.07% - - -
6 to 12 months past due BHEAET_ER 112%-1.42% 122 (52) 70
More than 12 months BB+ _ERML 100.00% 3,825 (3,825) -
5,757 (3,891) 1,866
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27. M EEREEREMIA
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NFE(E)

(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

(1)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Expected loss rates are based on aging for classes
with different credit risk characteristics and exposures,
and the estimated loss rates are estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure relevant information about
specific debtors is updated.

Movements in loss allowance in respect of trade

(a) 1EEEE (&)

(i) EWER (&
ARERERESFESR
REBEREBE RSHLE
EFHBE  URBRERS
BB AR R A
R EBIR R R A R
W %k 2 FB HB 4 B P9 2 A O
HEERRZBERZEZ
ER o

BRERZERERED

receivables are as follows: el
Trade
receivables
F& Uit B =X
HK$'000
TE T
At 1 January, 2022 A ZEZF—H—H 3,958
Reversal of impairment losses BE &8 #E (67)
At 31 December, 2022 and 1 January, 2023 b’(‘_v __E'f— B=+—HBxk
- —#—HF—H 3,891
Impairment loss recognised (=R /J'JZ{EJES E= 67
At 31 December, 2023 RN_EFE_=—F+"_B=+—H 3,958
No significant changes to estimation techniques or ﬁ?iﬁiﬁﬁ M > 5 5 AR
assumptions were made during the reporting period. REMEHIBEARES o
EELEERERERSRAA 153
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

154

(1)

Loans and interest receivables

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of an asset and whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing
basis throughout each reporting period. To assess
whether there is a significant increase in credit risk,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forwarding-
looking information. Especially the following indicators
are incorporated:

- internal credit rating;

- external credit rating (as far as available); and

- actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that

are expected to cause a significant change to the
counterparties’ ability to meet its obligations.

Wauxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December, 2023
HE_Z_-_F+ZA=+—HLHFE

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Loans and interest receivables (Continued)
A summary of the assumptions underpinning the

Group's ECL model for the loans and interest

receivables is as follows:

Category
8l

Definition of category

gHEE

27. AR EEREMTIA

QAT EEE)

(a) 1EEEE (&)
(ii) KB RFE (&)
7s £ [ B 70 FE M AR R R B
Z 815 B 5 48 1 = AT K
BZBRRBEMT:

Basis for recognition of ECL provision

RHEEEEREZHEIER

Stage 1

B

Stage 2

B2 R

Stage 3

B3R

Exposures where there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition and that are not credit-
impaired upon origination.

EERBBVIERLURE R LR KR
EMERELBIAREREEREZR

& o
’Z/\l\

Exposures where there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition but are not credit-impaired.
EERBBYLESE UKL IR KEIE N
ETRERESGREZRAR

Exposures are assessed as credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that asset have occurred.

HEEHZEEZGHARREEZRELE
AHFEZ-—BANZEEMH > AR KT
HALREERE-

Portion of the lifetime ECL associated with
the probability of default events occurring
within the next 12 months is recognised.

BERERRK+TZERARNELEERNEMHFZH
Rz BREERESSD -

Lifetime expected losses (i.e. reflecting the
remaining lifetime of the financial asset) is
recognised.

BELHAEAGE IRKRBETE/ME E
ZRERER) -

Lifetime expected losses is recognised and
interest revenue is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost (net of provision) rather than the gross
carrying amount.

BT EHASBBELERABERF XL #
AL A (OB E) MIFRDEEUSE
R U o
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

156

(1)

Loans and interest receivables (Continued)
Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from other
receivables and loans and interest receivables are set
out in notes 15 and 16 respectively.

Loans to the top borrower and top five borrowers
constituted approximately 26% and 51% of the
Group's net loans receivable balance respectively as at
31 December, 2022.

The directors considered that the credit risk arising
from the loans receivable as at 31 December, 2022
which were not fully impaired was significantly
mitigated by the collaterals held, if required. The
Group did not provide any guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

Prior to the discontinuance of operation of the Money
Lending Business as detailed in note 7, the Group
rebutted the presumption of default under ECL model
for loans and interest receivables over 90 days past due
based on continuous business with the Group. They
were assessed individually based on their probability
of default and exposure of default with reference to
historical credit loss experience, adjusted by current
and forward-looking factors.

Wauxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December, 2023
HE_Z_-_F+ZA=+—HLHFE

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Loans and interest receivables (Continued)
Movements in the gross amount of loans and interest

27. AR EEREMTIA

QAT EEE)

(a) IFEEE (&)
(i) EWERRFE (&)
EWERRF BEEE

receivables are as follows: Ul
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FIMEER B2 ER IR fgt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FTERT TET FTERT
At 1 January, 2022 R-E--&#-F-H - 104,713 - 104,713
Transfer i - (99,640) 99,640 -
Repaid during the year REREBE - (165) - (165)
At 31 December, 2022 and RZEZZF+-A
1 January, 2023 =+-HAKZEZ=
—A—H - 4,908 99,640 104,548
Repaid during the year REREBE - - (2,932) (2,932)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMNB AR - (4,908) (92,867) (97,775)
At 31 December, 2023 R_EBE_=F+_8
=+—H - - 3,841 3,841
By class at 31 December, 2023 BROBEY
RZE-=Z&+ZH
=+—H
- Loans receivable -EWER - - 3,841 3,841
~ Interest receivables —EWF B - - - -
_ h 3,841 3,841
By class at 31 December, 2022 BAEEY
WZE__&+_H
=+—H
- Loans receivable -EWER - 4,908 89,410 94,318
~ Interest receivables —EWF B - = 10,230 10,230
- 4,908 99,640 104,548
BELABERZERERERAA 157
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HE_Z_-_F+ZA=+—HLHFE

MHEREEEREMIA
QAT EEE)

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27.
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Loans and interest receivables (Continued)
An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL

(a) EREERE &
(i) [EWEIRFIE ()
EREREEEEBHEZ

allowances is as follows: HEommT:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
B BB EE] 2 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TER FTHET TER
At 1 January, 2022 WZE--%—H—H - 99,805 - 99,805
Impact on year ended ECLs of FREME 2 HEE
exposures transferred between HEABHEEER
stages during the year Z2EE - (99,640) 99,640 -
Repaid during the year RERNEE - (165) - (165)
At 31 December, 2022 and RZEZZF+ZA
1 January, 2023 “+-HAKRZEZ=
—H—H - - 99,640 99,640
New originated WMESE - 2,704 - 2,704
Repaid during the year REREBE - - (2,932) (2,932)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENRBERR - (2,704) (92,867) (95,571)
At 31 December, 2023 RZEZ=F4+ZH
=+—H - - 3,841 3,841
By class at 31 December, 2023 BOBEY
RZEZ=%+ZH
=+—H
- Loans receivable -EWED - - 3,841 3,841
~ Interest receivables —EWFIE - - - -
- - 3,841 3,841
By class at 31 December, 2022 BRAEEY
RZEZZ%+ZA
=+-—H
— Loans receivable -EWER - - 89,410 89,410
~ Interest receivables - WA & - - 10,230 10,230
- - 99,640 99,640

RS HE > G5t ERR
RIGELRIRERED -

No significant changes to estimation techniques or
assumptions were made during the reporting period.
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)
(iif)  Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include cash
and cash equivalents, deposits, loan receivables and
other receivables. The Group accounts for its credit risk
by appropriately providing for expected credit losses
on a timely basis. In calculating the expected credit
loss rates, the Group considers historical loss rates for
each category of receivables and adjusts for forward
looking macroeconomic data.

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including the
short-term investment of cash surpluses and the raising of
loans to cover expected cash demands. The Group's policy
is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term.

27. AR EEREMTIA
QFEGR)

(a) IFEEE (&)
(iii) 7% # #4555 iR = A th
T EE
REH R AT R Z H 2R
EEOERERREESEE
W BE s BRERREM
FEWRR o A< 82 B2 48 e B i
BHEERRBEERER
B UBEHEERRAMKR -
REAEBEMEEBEXRE
AEEGEESHBRINRZ
BIEBEER > WHATEMR
BICEHBFHAE -

(b) 7B EZ mEE
FrEERENEEEREEHA
BzREEE ORBEERGFEZ
EHREREMERUEN AR
REFE - AEEZBREES
BEEERBES TR UEFRE
FreRtREREHAGESS -
UEMNHERRERAARDEESS
K o
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HE_Z_-_F+ZA=+—HLHFE

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

27.

The following table shows the remaining contractual

maturities at the end of the reporting period of the

Group's financial liabilities, which is based on contractual

undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments

computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on

rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the

earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

MHEREEEREMIA
QAT EEE)

(b) 78 & & B (A7)
TRITAEAZ SMEERR
EMRZBTINIBA HE
RETNFAUBRREAE(E@E
ERTAMEHE R BGR
RMABFE URBREHRZ
34T B ) DR A S B AT AE
WERMRZREOM:

2023
—E”=F
Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than
Amount cash flow On demand 2 years
BiIIMABER -SRI SR—F
REE HERERE FHREXK EORWE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FTHRT FHERT FET
Other payables =R NEA 846 846 846 -
Lease liabilities HEEE 1,283 1,340 804 536
Interest-bearing borrowings MEER 790 932 932 -
Amount due to a director EA—IEEERR 2,852 2,852 2,852 -
5771 5,970 5,434 536
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

R %5 ¥ 2% BfY X

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(c)

27.

MHEREEEREMIA
QAT EEE)

(b) TBEZEE (&)

2022

=
Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than
Amount cash flow On demand 2 years
BEIMARIER —FRIBAN SR—F
REE REREBLE BEX  EBORWE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
Other payables HE R 2,154 2,154 2,154 -
Lease liabilities HEEE 622 636 616 20
Interest-bearing borrowings HEBR 3,808 4,189 4,189 -
6,584 6,979 6,959 20

Interest rate risk (c) FIEEE

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from lease

liabilities and interest-bearing borrowings. Borrowings,

which are issued at fixed rate, expose the Group to fair

value interest rate risk. The Group's interest rate profile as

monitored by management is set out below.

BELEETRREREERSRAR

FERZMNXEREZREEE
BERMEEAR  ERBERTE
EEAAZRATENXER -
EREENEAERZAEEGH
I o
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27. HHEAKEEREM T A
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NTE(4E)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) (c) FIEREEE)
Interest rate profile FIFHE
The following table details the interest rate profile of the TRHAFANRBSHXRETERGTE
Group's interest-bearing borrowings at the end of the Bz HNEHEG
reporting period.
2023 2022
—EZ=E S
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BRAE HK$'000 BIEF % HK$'000
% FTAET % FTET
Fixed rate borrowings: EEEM:
Interest-bearing borrowings IENSSEEN 18.0% 790 10.0% 3,808
Lease liabilities HEE&E 5.0% 1,283 5.0% 622
2,073 4,430
(d) Currency risk (d) E¥EmEE

162

The Group's business activities and its assets and liabilities
were denominated in HK$ and RMB. The management
considers the Group is not exposed to significant foreign
currency risk as most sales, income, purchases and expenses
are denominated in the functional currency of the operations
to which they relate. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(e) Categories of financial instruments

27. AR EEREMTIA
QFEGR)

(e) =T RIEFF

2023 2022
—F-= =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost R IH A RS R 2
TREE 6,320 13,476
Financial liabilities E Rk
Financial liabilities at amortised cost Yo 48 55 A A5 BR 2
THEaR 5,771 6,584

(f) Fair value measurement
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December, 2023 and 2022.

28. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
AND BALANCES

(a) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the directors of the Company
as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the highest paid
employees as disclosed in note 9, is as follows:

() AFEHE
75 B B AN A BN H O A5 A
ZEMIAZEREEEZHER =T
TEERIBI Y RE+—
HZAFELEERER °

28. EXMES X 57 KGR

(a) TEEEANS M
FEBTIEEEABHHEN
HeFT B2 BN AARESE N
ERWEFMBEEZBMNE TR
BEFMEEZME  FBEOT:

2023 2022
—¥=-= = — T
HK$°000 HK$'000
T#E T TET
Short-term employee benefits MHREERT 4,117 3,944
Post-employment benefits BER 2 E 128 112
4,245 4,056
EELEERERERSRAA 163
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28. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
AND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(b) Material related party transactions

29.

164

(c)

The Group has not entered into any material related party
transactions during the years ended 31 December, 2023 and
2022.

Balances with related parties
The Company’s balances with related parties are disclosed in
the Company's statement of financial position (note 31(a)).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 9 February,

2024, the Board of Directors proposed:

(A) a Capital Reorganisation involving:

(i)

(i)

the Share Consolidation whereby every ten (10) issued and
unissued Existing Shares of par value of HK$0.04 each will
be consolidated into one (1) Consolidated Share of par value
of HK$0.4 each;

the Capital Reduction whereby (a) any fractional
Consolidated Share in the issued share capital of the
Company arising from the Share Consolidation will be
cancelled, and (b) the par value of each issued Consolidated
Share will be reduced from HK$0.4 to HK$0.01 by cancelling
the paid-up capital to the extent of HK$0.39 on each issued
Consolidated Share;

Wauxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
Annual Report 2023

28. EXRE R X5 KGR (E)

29.

(b) EXHELZXS

(c)

BE_Z_="FRFZF+Z
B=+—HBLEE FAEBELE
SJIUERERBELDRS °

B E S B Z 4R
AREIHBAERBRZGGHRN
NN I N A s
31(a)) ©

HREHIREIE
THREPERZ RS _NE_/AN
H ZEEgREET:

(MEXREMHE K

)

(if)

lRin& 6 FIL > K8+ 00K
SREEMBITZEEITRAE
ETRAERMAEHA-—(NKRER
E{E0ABITZE KRG

HlBE X > It QFRFE#
TRATARMGHMELE ZE
BTG HRMDRWEE > kb)
BiBFHEREEITEHRKRM0.39
BLZBERAMEEREE]T
G RN EERSR0.4EBITHIE
F0.01#87T;



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A

R 3

R %5 ¥ 2% BfY X

For the year ended 31 December, 2023
HE_Z_-_F+ZA=+—HLHFE

29. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(CONTINUED)

(iii)

(iv)

the Share Subdivision whereby immediately following the
Capital Reduction, each of the authorised but unissued
Consolidated Shares of par value of HK$0.4 each will be
subdivided into 40 Adjusted Shares of par value of HK$0.01
each; and

the credit arising from the Capital Reduction will be applied
towards offsetting the Accumulated Losses. The balance of
the credit (if any) after offsetting the Accumulated Losses
will be transferred to a distributable reserve account of
the Company which may be applied by the Company in
any manner as permitted by all applicable laws and the
Memorandum and Articles and as the Board considers
appropriate. Each of the Adjusted Shares arising from the
Capital Reorganisation shall rank pari passu in all respects
with each other in accordance with the Memorandum and
Articles.

(B) subject to the Capital Reorganisation becoming effective, to

implement the Rights Issue on the basis of two (2) Rights Shares

for every one (1) Adjusted Share held on the Record Date at the

Subscription Price of HK$0.12 per Rights Share, to raise up to

approximately HK$30.54 million before expenses by way of the
rights issuing up to 254,528,000 Rights Shares.

Details of the above Capital Reorganization and Rights Issue are

set forth in the announcements dated 14 February, 2024.

As at the date of approval for issuance of the consolidated

financial statements, the Capital Reorganisation and Rights Issue

have not yet been effected.

29. SREHA B FIE (&)
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TE > KEREEVABITZEE
BRETEHROD DT RIORE
REECOIE T ZEBMERD
hicd

(iv) HIURBERELZERR BN
REtBIE - NIRPERFBIEE
EREHR (WA REEEELART
ZRAIMHDIKEER ) LATRAR
BIRFIABEREG RER KM
MAMEFEEFIRRABEEZ
ERAERBA BRESEEARAR
A NEXAEEMEEZRR
KARRMNREZBEZSSER
=EAREMAM -

BFEAEMHENB  UIDBEESRK
HERHBLRZBETENRCZBHAEF
B—(WREHEERMDEZHEQEER
BRHZEESHER BEBETRS
254,528,0008% 1 I B (9 2 £ & 5 =0 »
EEFT L3045 88 T (0BRRE X
Al) ©

T EASAHARERNFEREHTNE
AT _NE_RBA+HEEANAS -

RHtEEMESMBREBH > EX
EHARERER

BELEETRREREERSRAR 165

F #2023



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
R 3

R %5 ¥ 2% BfY X

For the year ended 31 December, 2023
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30. SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

166

Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31

F+-B=+—HLEE

December, 2023 and 2022

30. B AT

(a)

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries

which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities

of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless

otherwise stated.

Country of
Incorporation

Particulars of
issued and paid

Proportion of effective

RIB_ZFR_F__F
+ZB=+—AZZENE
A

TREHEHAKEXE BEE
HEREITBREZWEARZ

FE-BREAFEBIN FERD
ZHEMNBEBR

Proportion of effective

Name of Company and operation up capital ownership interest ownership interest Principle activity
AR I K BETRAR
GES BEMEER RA#E BREEEEELH  ERESERZUN  XEEH
2023 2022
ZEIZE it St
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
B & B Gk
KanHan Technologies Limited Hong Kong 363,636 shares - 100% - 100%  Provision of software
(HK$7,200,000) platform services
EERBEBRAT B8 363,636/ & 1 RERETERS
(7,200,000% 72)
AP Finance (note (i)) Hong Kong 1 share - - - 100%  Provision of money lending
(HK$1) business up to 2 June, 2021
Bing s (a0 EE 1B (178 7) RUMEEHK(EE
ZZZ-%XAZH)
First Surplus Investment Ltd. BVI 10 shares of - 60% - 60%  Investment holding
US$1 each
First Surplus Investment Ltd. ERELEE 0kEkEE REAR
ESHSET)
Mooff Games Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares - 60% - 60%  Development and provision
(HK$10,000) of mobile data solutions
and related services
Mooff Games Limited &E 10,0008 % 13 RERRELHYE
(10,0007 ) BABERBERS
Side Quest Limited Hong Kong 3,020,000 shares - 60% - 60%  Development and provision
(HK$4,510,001) of mobile data solutions
and related services
Side Quest Limited gE 3,020,000% & 13 RERRUBDUE
(4,510,001% 7¢) BABERBERS

Wauxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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30. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 30. Kt @ A El (48)
(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 (a) R-_E_=ZFR_-_EFE__F
December, 2023 and 2022 (Continued) +-BA=+—HZETENE
REJFIE (B)

Country of Particulars of

Incorporation issued and paid  Proportion of effective  Proportion of effective
Name of Company and operation up capital ownership interest ownership interest Principle activity

AR L K BEITRAR
REBHE BEFMEZER BA#E BEREEERZLH EREEREGLA TEEH

2023 2022
ZEIZE k- St
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect

E# il & B f

Smart City Technology Limited Hong Kong 12,000 shares - 60% - 60%  Development of mobile games
(HK$1,010,000) and applications
BEUTREARLT 5% 12,000/ & 14 HEFREERER
(1,010,000% )

Top Banana Limited Hong Kong 1 share (HK$1) - 60% - 60%  Development of mobile games
and applications

BEERAH 5% 1R (178 7) HEFREERER

BMZEREBERAG() PRC RMB3,600,000 = = - 60%  Development of mobile games
and related services

BNz ERBBRAF) HE AR 3,600,007 BEFRBEBRERRE

Notes: Wiz

(i) Disposed on 14 December, 2023 (see note 30(b)). (i) ER_ZE=F+"_F+EHHEE

(R B E30(b)) ©

(ii) Registered as wholly-owned foreign enterprise under PRC law. iy MRERBEZEZEZMAIEEE R
Deregistered on 22 August, 2022. # N2 SV — -
H#E B ©

BELABERZERERERAA 167
F #2023



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A

17

For the year ended 31 December,

BwE

=

R %5 ¥ 2% BfY X

2023

TECTZF+AZ=+—HILEFE

30. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

168

(b)

Disposal of subsidiaries

On 14 December, 2023, the Company entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with a third party to sell the entire
interest in Major Worldwide, and to assign to the purchaser
all the debts due from Major Worldwide and its subsidiary
(together the “"Major Worldwide Group”) to the Group at
a consideration of HK$6,000,000. The principal activity of
Major Worldwide is investment holding and its subsidiary,
AP Finance, was principally engaged in provision of money
lending business up to September 2021. As a result of the
disposal on 14 December, 2023, the Group has lost control
over Major Worldwide.

On 21 June, 2023, the Group disposed of Forever Integrity
Limited and its subsidiary (together the “Forever Integrity
Group”), which are an insignificant subsidiaries. The
business operation and revenue of Forever Integrity Group
were unfavourably affected by the continuous outbreak
of COVID-19. In order to prevent further loss, the Group
transferred 51% shareholdings in Forever Integrity indirectly
held by the Company to an independent third party for a
total cash consideration of HK$100.

Wauxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December, 2023
HE_Z_-_F+ZA=+—HLHFE

30. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)
On disposal dates, the aggregate net liabilities of these

30. 4B 27 (&)
(b) &N EAE (48)

REEBRH > ZFWEB LB T

subsidiaries at the completion date comprised of:

BN BEEFERRE:

Major
Worldwide
Group Forever
Major Integrity
Worldwide Group Total
£ BFREE nE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET TET
Analysis of assets and liabilities HEAERFENEER
over which control was lost: BEND:
Deposits, prepayments and other e BERKEMERR
receivables 49 46 95
Loans and interest receivables BWEZREFE 2,204 - 2,204
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEN = 52 52
Other payables and accruals HitEN R R E A (109)" (104) (213)
Net assets/(liabilities) BHEEE (BE)FE
disposed of 2,144 (6) 2,138
Gain on disposal of HEMBARKEFE
subsidiaries, net
Cash consideration ReRE 6,000 —* 6,000
Net (assets)/liabilities disposed of BEHE(BE)/8BFE (2,144) 6 (2,138)
Waiver of amounts due from Major 4 % Major Worldwide £ &
Worldwide Group to the Group ENAEENE (71) = (71)
3,785 6 3,791
Net cash inflow/(outflow) HEWBARFRRF
from disposal of subsidiaries RERA/(Rit) 38
Cash consideration received BhRENE 5,700 —* 5,700
Cash and cash equivalents BHERZRBEEEY
disposed of = (52) (52)
5,700 (52) 5,648
BELEEREREBRBRAT 169
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30. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

170

(c)

* HK$100
A Below HK$1,000

! excluding HK$119,518,000 amount due to the Group immediately

prior to the completion date of the disposal

The deferred consideration of HKD$300,000 was settled in
cash by the purchaser on 14 March, 2024.

The gain on disposal is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

There were no disposals of subsidiaries made in 2022.

Information of material non-controlling
interest (“NCI")

The following table lists out the information relating to
First Surplus Investment Ltd. and its subsidiaries which
has material NCI and which comprise the mobile games
and applications operating segment of the Group. The
summarised financial information presented below
represents the amounts before any inter-company
elimination.

Wauxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December, 2023
HE_Z_-_F+ZA=+—HLHFE

30. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 30. [t B &7 (4&)
(c) Information of material non-controlling (c) EXFFERERZ (TFEERE
interest (“NCI”) (Continued) wm1) BEF (&)
2023 2022
—E=F -~
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET
NC| percentage EEREZADL 40% 40%
Non-current assets FERBEE - -
Current assets TMENE E 5 1,981
Current liabilities mEaE (13,417) (13,395)
Non-current liabilities FEREEaE = -
Net liabilities BEFE (13,412) (11,414)
Carrying amount of NCI FERERREE (5,365) (4,566)
Revenue I &= - -
Loss for the year FEEIE (1,982) (256)
Total comprehensive expense THMEZAELE - (180)
Loss allocated to NCI DEEFEREREIE (793) (102)
Cash flows used in from operating KEEMPAAZ
activities, net REeEREFEE (7) (52)
Cash flows used in investing CEEBFRAZ
activities, net REMEFR - =
Cash flows used in financing MEZHFIEZ
activities, net ReEnE 758 - -
BELABERZERERERAA 171
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31. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 31.

COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position

ERBEZMBER

(a) RIEBRI &

2023 2022
—E=F -~
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBARZKE - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries P& WL B JB8 A B TR 1B - 24,668
- 24,668
Current assets RBEE
Deposits, prepayments and other BE - BYAK
receivables H 78 U= 314 174
Loan receivable EW &= - -
Cash and cash equivalents REMREEEEY 572 88
886 262
Current liabilities mREAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE 1< B /B A B 7k 18 20,826 20,826
Amount due to a director B —fIEFEERR 2,852 -
Interest-bearing borrowings BT S 18 ™= 790 3,808
Other payables and accrued charges ~ EfthE KR EH & B 493 1,673
24,961 26,307
Net current liabilities RBAaERE (24,075) (26,045)
NET LIABILITIES BEREHE (24,075) (1,377)
Capital and reserves BARKEE
Share capital % < 50,906 50,906
Reserves &5 (74,981) (52,283)
CAPITAL DEFICIENCY BN A (24,075) (1,377)
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31. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 31.

COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(b) Details of changes in the Company’s individual
components of capital and reserves during the

rRBEZMBEH ()

(b) ZREFEANE LR GHEEF
HEZEBFEUT:

year:
Share Share Capital Capital Accumulated
Capital premium reserve surplus losses Total
R4 f& 17 & (B BXfifE BEXRR REER @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FTHET THER TERT TERT TET
At 1 January, 2022 R-E-_&—F—H 50,906 381,490 2,261 1,609 (434,774) 1,492
Loss and total comprehensive FERBRIARIAE
expense for the year - - - - (2,869) (2,869)
At 31 December, 2022 RZEZ_F
+ZB=+-H 50,906 381,490 2,261 1,609 (437,643) (1,377)
At 1 January, 2023 R-ZB-=f-F—H 50,906 381,490 2,261 1,609 (437,643) (1,377)
Profit and total comprehensive FERIREZEWREE
income for the year - - - - (22,698) (22,698)
At 31 December, 2023 RZZEZ=%F
+-B=+-—H 50,906 381,490 2,261 1,609 (460,341) (24,075)

(c) Contingent liabilities
At 31 December, 2023, the Company has no contingent
liabilities.

(c) XAERE
N _E_EZFE+_H=+—H">
KABWELAREE ©
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32.

174

_E_=F+ZR=+—HLEE

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and
other uncertainties affecting application of those policies and
the sensitivity of reported results to changes in conditions and
assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing the
consolidated financial statements. The material accounting policies
are set forth in note 2. The Group believes the following critical
accounting policies involve the most significant judgements and
estimates used in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

(a) Impairment loss on goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill have been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the directors to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Details of the impairment loss calculation are set out in note
13.

(b) Deferred tax assets

No deferred tax asset in relation to unused tax losses and
deductible temporary differences has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position. In case where
taxable future profits are generated, an understatement
of current year accounting profit due to the unrecognised
deferred tax asset may arise, which deferred tax asset would
be recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the period in which such event
takes place.

Wauxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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32. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c)

Impairment allowances on financial assets at
amortised cost

The Group estimates the loss allowances for financial assets
at amortised cost by assessing the ECLs. This requires the
use of significant estimates and judgements. ECLs are based
on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic conditions
at the end of the reporting period. Where the estimation
is different from the previous estimate, such difference will
affect the carrying amounts of financial assets at amortised
cost and thus the impairment loss in the period in which
such estimate is changed.

33. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As a result of the application of the new HKICPA guidance on

the

abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism, and the

adoption of amendments to HKAS 12: Deferred Tax related to

Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction certain

comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to current

year’s presentation and to provide comparative amounts in respect
of items disclosed for the first time in 2023. Further details of the

changes in accounting policies are disclosed in note 2(c).

32. G 5t {4 5 R F iR (48)

(c)

BEBHEREAEZZHEE
ZREREE

rERZEBNLRAEERE
MBBERASHEZEREER
SAEEEA  KWEFTEEHREKX
stk - FHEEGREAE
EEBEEEBRELER LR
BEBAZEEERALLEKS
HAREREERNRBRZTM
EHEEEME » HEstA RN %k
AIEEt ERERSEEREH
AN EZEMEEZIREE
EME B EHRBZRERS

B o

33. LR F
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FIVE-YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

IFEMBRE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E--F “T-"F EZ--F —Z"THE —T-HE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TET TERT FTET TER
(Restated)
(&)
RESULTS e
Revenue from continuing and BERERIELEER WA
discontinued operations 24,493 21,436 21,031 31,420 40,073
Loss before taxation BRifATE 1B (9,435) (22,076) (86,771) (93,155) (69,601)
Income tax (expense)/credit FRCEAC Ve 100 105 (1,215) 5,158 2,118
Loss for the year FEEBE (9,335) (21,971) (87,986) (87,997) (67,483)
Attributable to: BUTFALREL:
Owners of the Company ARBEAAN (8,542) (21,869) (83,337) (71,611) (61,470)
Non-controlling interests FERER (793) (102) (4,649) (16,386) (6,013)
(9,335) (21,971) (87,986) (87,997) (67,483)
Loss per share BREE
Basic and diluted (HK cents) BARR#E(BW) (0.67) (1.71 (6.55) (5.63) (4.83)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERER
Total assets BEME 8,703 19,570 35,678 159,519 260,698
Total liabilities BEEE (13,264) (14,796) (8,796) (44,688) (57,979)
(4,561) 4,774 26,882 114,831 202,719
Total equity attributable to owners ~ AATEEAEEEREE
of the Company 804 9,346 31,375 114,690 186,544
Non-controlling interests FEREDR (5,365) (4,572) (4,493) 141 16,175
(4,561) 4,774 26,882 114,831 202,719
176 Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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